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FOR THE YEMI 

NL+ iiitcrcst income $24,928 $24,009 4% ?Yo 

Otlier income 26,121 2 1,4 1.0 22% 1% 
Otlier experisex 34,323 30,323 13%) 10% 

Net hicomc 10,207 9,126 12% 11% 

$512,242 $476,823 21% 9%) lotal assets 

Total net loans 460,689 39592 1 16% 12% 
T d  deposits 483,620 391,059 24% 8% 
Sliarelioldea' equity 62,607 5'1,307 9% 10% 

Earnings per coiiiiiicin share $2.34 $2.1 1 11% 11% 
Dilutecl earnings per common sliaaxc 2.31 2.05 13% 12Y" 
Dividends dcclarcJ 0.76 0.72 0% 16% 
Rook value 14.41 13.26 9% 10% 
Closing price 36.63 28.25 30% 8Y" 

Jietiim oii average asseh 2.01% 2.0SY" 
Return on average sharchoIders' equity 11.26% l6.g5% 

................................................................................................................................. 
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P ?  

................................................................................................................................. 
PER COMMON SHAIIe 

................................................................................................................................. 
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I'KIC13 k W G E  O F  SIlAKkS .............................................................................................................................................................................. 
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2002 

Fiat Quarter 
Second Quarter 
Tliircl Quarter 
I tiurth Quarter 

$32.40 $28.25 $0.19 
42.50 31.00 0.19 
41.10 3'7.00 0.19 
40.23 36.45 0.19 

................................................................................................................................. 
2001 

First Quarter 
Sccontl Q11artt.r 
Tliirrl Quarter 

Fwrtli Quarter 

$2725 $20.88 $0. 

3 1.20 24.00 0. 
3 1 .so 2'1.00 0 * 
30.00 30.9,s 0. 
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NET INCOME 
(Dollam in millions) 

10.2 

TOTAL ASSETS 
(Dollars in millions) 

577.2 

TOTAL NET LOANS 
(DoIlars in millions) 

460.7 

TOTAL DEPOSITS 
(Dollars in millions) 

483.6 

436.8 

98 99 on 01 02 98 99 00 01 02 98 99 00 01 02 98 99 00 01 02 

SHARE HOLDERS' E Q ~ J I ~ '  
(Dollars in millions) 

62.6 

EARNINGS PER SHARE 
(Dollars) 

2.34 

COMMON STOCK 
MARKET VALUE 
(Dollars per share) 

36.63 

COMMON STOCK 
BOOK VAL~JE 
(Dollars per share) 

14.41 

1.83 

23.88 

98 99 00 01 02 98 99 00 01 02 98 99 00 01 02 
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BRYN IWWR BANK CORPORATION ANNUAL REPORT 2002 3 ............ 



~'K031 'l'llli C'IMIKIrn 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  ............................................................................................................................... 

Dear FeHow SLareLolders: 

T l i s  past year was a g c m l  one for Hryn Mawr HaiiL Corporatinri arid its main suLsidiary, The 

Bryn Mawr Trcisl C'oimpany. Hc~LL iict iiicoinc and fulIy & I d  earnings per share set n e w  recorcls, coming 

in at $lO,,Z07,000 and $2.31 rcspcctivcIy. TIiesc figures represent iricreafies of 12% arid 13% over tlie 

previous year. o u r  financial perfoniiance ratios, a retuni-oii-asset:ts oi2.01% and a retii rii-oil-eqiii ty of 

l?.zh%, pllt 11s ~ l ~ l o ~ l ~  the !lidhest pelfLKtIlh1~ ballks hi tile COIlllttry. 

* *  At  Hryri Maw Irust, wc Iiavc Imir priniary corc-cnriipctericies. Let me touch briefly on eacL of 

tlicse areas. 

RMT Mortgadc Company, our mortgage banking unit, set a n e w  milestone Ly originating 

over $625 millmi oi resicleritial loans. we can conkcleiitly say tliat we are die prumicr providcr of 

resiilential mortgages in tlie Philadelphia area. 

O u r  Husiness Hanlzing divisioii cxpcricriccJ an cxccllcnt zoo2 witli hotli loan demarid arid 

loan quality remaining strong tliroughouit tlie year. Our ahility to offer soplisticatecl cash managemen t 

scrviccs, dung with customized credit facilities, helped us to attract a large 1iiiiill)er of new coqmrate clieiits. 

w Tlie Retail Ba&d 6jroLip, wliich iiicliidcs oiir liraiicli system atitl consumer lending activities, 

had a t e m h c  twelve montlis with cleposits increasing over 24% (luriiig dic ycar. We opened xi  aclditionnl 

1 i i n  i tcd-service oflicc in lioscrnont Preshylcriari Village, wliich 3xings to seven tlie iiiii&r of Me-care 

cormminities we now serve. Also, L i n g  tlie latter part of 2003, we wd Ix opening a large, hd-service 

brarich (711 West Chester Pike in Newtomi Square, mir seventi such facility. 

oiir wealth Mana~erncnt divisic7ti provides higl i - rpahy trust and irivestment mamgenient 

scrviccs to iiirlividuals, husincsscs, arid non-pmfit entities nationwicle. Despite tlie declining stock marlqet, 

a large n d x r  of adclitioiial clients were added last year and revenues for the last two quarters 

exceeded revenues reported for the same two cpiarters in 2001. 

2002 

we were pleasecl witl i  tlie perfonnarice of our "Sliare-die-Client" program, wliicli cc7niplclcd ils 

first fd year (if operation in 2002. Tlie premise of the program is that  our clients enjoy tlieir existing 



I ............................................................................................................................................................................ 

relationships with Bryn Mawr Trust and would be pleased to have their other financial needs handled by 

us as well. Over 2,700 clients, served by one part of our organization, were referred to other divisions 

w i t h  the Bad7 where they could take advantage 

of otker . high-, quality products and services. The 

effect of this Droeram on our bottom line has been 

ilr imedi, 

I 

ate. 

During 2003, we d continue our sto& 

repurchase program under the guidelines approved 

bY our I 3oard 3f Directors. During 2002, we 

repurchased over $7 &on of BMBC stock, thus 

helping to boost our important earnings-per-share 

figure. In addition, dividends were increased for the 
I 

tei ith cc msecui Live year. 

of Directors - a necessity if we are to remain a Lgh-performing banli. 

Every year brings new challenges with it. The current low interest rate environment, whch 

negatively impacts our net interest margins, and the anemic stoclz market certainly d have an egect on 

our performance in 2003. However, I can promise you that all of us at Bryn M a w  Trust w1U do our best 

to have yet another record setting year for you, our shareholders. 

........................................................................................................................................................................... I 



TIIF YE!\R I N  I<EVIF,W ............................................................................................................................................................................... 

Pnr the Year 2002, Bryn Mawr EanL Corporation registered its eigrldi 

corisccutivc year of record earnings. Among the most notable acliievements 

of tlie year, resiclential mortgage profitahility increased Ly 7~;/0,  total net  loans 

grew hy lh%, arid total depnsits increased 24%. 

OIIK HEKI’IAC:E 

For over 1 14 years, the Corporation’s priiicipal suhsidiary, T h e  Hryri 
Exci tilivc Maric3pcrriml S C ~ I C ~ .  

Standing Alisnn E Gers, Jnscpli G L e f e r  

Rnhert J Ricciaidi aiid JnIiii C: Rniiiaii 

mi~I  Joseph W Rebl 

Mawr Trust Company has heen a stalwart, scJid hiaricial iiisti t u  Lion, slcadfastly 

cledicated to the local community. Tlie organizatjou rcmaincd strong arid 

inclependeiit even during periods oC vola tilc ccoriornic 

cliaiiges ~ l i a t  Lave precipj t a d  otLcr financinl service 

providers heiiig taken over, merged, or even complelely 

going out of existelwe. I h i r j i i g  2002, H r y n  Mawr Trust 

was lioiIorec1 Cor its quality scrvice, sound husiness 

practices aud overall valuc to tlie community. 

Tlic Main Line Chamher of Cornmeroe 

honored T h e  Uryn Mawr rlhis t Company wi tIi i 1s 2002 

Business of the Year Award. In conjunction wit11 diis 

accolade, tlie Bank also received a citation Iron1 tlic 

PemisyIvanja House c>C lieprescritatives corigratuIating Bryri Mawr Trust for 

tliis great Lonor and  for enhancing the quality of life of tlie coiiiiiiiiiiity tliat 

i t  scrvcs. 

Haucr Financial, a service tliat rates the safety of fiiiaricial institutions 

6 n12I.N MAWR RANK ~ ~ O R I Y ) I ? A I - I ~ N  ANNIIAI, REPORI’ 2ooz ................................................................................................... 
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THE YEAR I N  REVTEW ............................................................................................................................................................................. 

throughout the nation, gave Bryn Mawr Trust its highest rating, which is given to  only the 

Lealthiest banks based o n  earnings, capital, and the quality of loan portfolios. 

Early in  2002, Bryn Mawr Bank Corporation was 

designated the 9th most profitable publicly traded bank 

holding company in  the nation by American Banker, the 

principal newspaper of the banking industry. w 

Focus ON THE CLIENT 

O u r  goal is to be the premier client-focused bank 

and wealth services organization in  the Philadelphia area. 

We continually strive to  set the highest standards for quality 

service and client satisfaction through superior staf€, 

teamwork, and the pursuit of excellence. Exceptional 

service, which is the key value-added component of our 

continued success, must continue to  be synonymous with 

Bryn Mawr Trust. 

The  key components that  embody exceptional 
RMT Mortgage Company. Regina Hurley, William E 
Mannion, Jr., Patrick J. Keenan and Sarah Fanjul 

client service can Lest be expressed by three simple words - prompt, professional, and friendly. 

PROMPT - quick, efficient, responsive and accurate. 

w PROFESSIONAL - quality products and services, knowledgeable staff, and of 

course professional demeanor and dress. 

w FRIENDLY - human,  warm, caring, courteous and always thankful for the client’s 

business. 

These three characteristics typify quality service at  Bryn Mawr Trust. w 

J R  CORPORATION ANNUAL REPORT 2002 1 ......................................................... 
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REAC'HINL: C 1 I 1'1' w 

commiiriity nctivitics inclucliiig cducation, lienltli, seiiior citizens' concerns, 

cultiiral cvwits, and civic affairs. 

R r p i  Mawr Trust professionals serve on 

tlic lmards and i n  other lcadership roles in more 

tl inn tbirty civic and cc7rnnmnity orgariizatjcms. 

More tliaii a C1oze1i professional orgnnizations 

Lenefit froiii tlie clrclicated servicc of our staCC 

m ciiihers. 

TLaiiLs to the clforts of a dcdicatecl 

group 01" cnipliiyees, a Ccimmiin i ty Bulletin Hoard 

was insti l u t e d  tlirougli the company's internal 

ccmmi Liriicatioiis iietwork, wlicrchy staH imcmbers 

m a y  in form fel low cinployees of volunteer aiid 

"s I lillilj -TH J: - c.: 1.1 ENT" 

The cross-selling program iristitutecl i 11 tlie last quarter of 2001 , 

prover1 t o  he n resouriding success, proclucing over 2,200 rcferrals to H yri 

Mawr Trust prodwts niid services during 2002. "Sliarc-tIie-Clieii 1" is n 

continuing process enahling our star1 to Letter serve our clients arid to clevclop 

new business. Our stall' is keenly awarc tliat growi iig additional revenue strcarris 

i s  critically important to m i  r continued success. 

ON ANNrv ................ ".............. ............................................................. ".....= 
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A RESOURCE FOR INFOR~MATION 

O u r  experienced professionals provide a complete array of wealth management services 

including investment management, trust and fiduciary services, custody and executor services, tax 

advisory, and employee benefit programs. This group also taaes on the challenge of keeping the 

public, as well as the professional financial community, up-to-date o n  the latest developments 

agecting the economy and personal finances. Each quarter, the  investment advisors publish the 

Economic Forecast and MarLet Review, which analyzes current economic conditions. 

In  2002, Wealth Management sponsored a series of 

professional workshops for lawyers, accountants and other 

financial professionals. Topics included: . Tax-Deferred Savings after EGTRRA, . Conservation Easements: A Tool for Tax and 

Estate Planning, and 

1 Planning for the Costs of College: An Overview 

of Section 529 Plans. 

In  late 2002, the  public was invited to  a special 

presentation entitled “Is Your Portfolio Ready for War?” 

TIIE ALL-II \ I IWRI~T “BACK ROOM” 

There were many advances in the operational and 

administrative areas of the organization to  keep expenses I Wealth Management. Lisa M. Brinton, F. Peter Brodie 

and Renee E. Robbins 
I 

under control while taking advantage of technology to continually improve our level of client 

service. In  order to  increase the efficiency of our Operational services, the Trust Operations unit  

was merged with the Banking Operations unit  and relocated from its previous quarters at IO 

Sou th  Bryn Mawr Avenue to  the Operations Center in Wayne. Q+Z 

........................................................................................................................................................................... : 

BCYN 1?Lnv1: RANK CORP~IU-I’ION ANNIJAL REPORT 2002 9 ......................................................... 



' rHL YFAK IN  ~?I:VlI'W ............................................................................................................................................................................... 

1iXPANT)TNC (11 Jli ~ ~ 0 O ' ~ P R l N ' l ~  

Plans are well unclerway for  a new hraiicli facility opening in 

Ncwtowri Square in tlie fall (4" 2003. A striking design by Casaccio Architects 

of Havertown will provide a n  approximately 3,700 square foot facility 

combining the  lntes t in  sell-service teclinology witli tlie persvnal serv- 

ice, long a Iiallrnarli of Bryn Mawr Trust. 

111 addition to s tniidard delivery clminels s ~ l i  as teller 

service a i d  safe deposj t hoxes, tlie lirnilcli will feature tlie latest 

amenities inclucling facilities for self-service banking trarisac tioiis 

and an afier-hours lobhy whjch includes an ATM amI a Merchant Banking 

Ccnter providing rolled coil1 am1 cash dispensers. 

hrihilcct 's  drdwtng 

Newlown Sytmre Branch 

Along w i i h  n generous parkiiig area, t he  hramb will liave a 

gtaLc-rif-tlic-art drive-u p ceiiier fea tiiring three lanes equipped with tlie most Retail Raiihmg. Riehaid J F~ich,, 
Linda N Kahlcy ~ n d  I H ~ ~ T I  J .  Newconwr sopliistica ted imecliaiiical deIivery sys tern avaiIaLL. Tlie drive-up facility will also 

feature a n  ATM and n i g h  depository providing 2 4 - h o ~ i r  drive- 

up service. 

The Newtown Scpiare LraticL will Le rnariagcd by  Vice 

President l3arhara Newcomer, a sensoncd LanIzing prnfessional 

wlio has Lecn wit11 Bryii Mawr Trust Cor almost fmir years and 

1ias over twelve years of diversified experience i i i  die financial 

services industry. We view the  es tahlislirnent of this fnciliiy as 

testimony io our coriimittrieiit ln expatid 011 r services to the 

residents and  businesses in tliis area nf Llelaware Coiinty. w 
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CORl’OIWTE INIX>RIM.~TION .: .......................................................................................................................................................................... 

CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS 
801 Lancaster Avenue 
Bryn Mawr, Pennsylvania 19010-3396 
610-525-1200 
w. bmtc.com 
........................................ .......................................................... 

DIRECTORS 
Warren W. Deakins 
SELF-EMPLOYED, INSURASCE SALES 

William Harral, I11 
CIIAIRMAN, C@D TECHNOLOGIES, JNC., PRESIDENT, TIIE RARRA 
FOUNDATION 

Wendell F. Holland 

Francis J. Let0 

COIJNSEL TO ORERMAYER, RERMAN, MAXWELL 8 IIIPPEL. J-LP 

ATTORNEY-AT-LAW, C E I L I  AND LETO, LLP, CHIEF EXECTITWE OFFICER, 
T H E  B&\NDYWISE A B S T U C T  COMPANIES 

Frederick C. “Ted” Peter 
CIIAIRMAN, PRESIDENT ANI) C H  
BRYN MAWR BANK CORPORATION AND THE BRYN MAVR TRLJST COMPANY 

Phyllis M. Shea 

Robert L. Stevens 
PRESIDENT, MLH REALTY 

B. Loyal1 Taylor, Jr. 
PRESIDENT, TAYLOR GIITS.  ISC. 

Nancy J. Vickers 

Thomas A. Williams 

KITORNEY-K~-LA\V, SHEA AND SHEA, 1.J.I’ 

PRESIDENC HRI” MAV’R COLLEGE 

RETIIZED, FORMERLY VICE l’RESIDENT, SECIIETARY/l’rZeASI!RER, 
I I O U G H T O S  ISTERNATIOSAL, INC. 
............................... ........................................................ 

MARKET MAKERS 
F. J. Morrissey Q Co., Inc. 
Goldman, Sachs 8 Co. 
Janney Montgomery LLC 
Knight Securities L.P. 
McConnell Budd 8 Downes 
Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner 
Morgan S t a d e y  Q Co., Inc. 

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARY 
The Bryn Mawr Trust Company 
A SVRSIDIARY or HRYN MAVT HANK CORPORATIOX 

SENIOR MANAGEMENT 
Frederick C. “Ted” Peters 11* 
CHAIRMAN, PRESIDEST A S D  CHlEF EXECIJTIVE OFFICER 

Alison E. Gers 
EXECI’TIVE VlCE PRESIDENT, AUMINISTRATIOS AND OPEPATIONS 

Joseph G .  Keefer 

Joseph W. RebP 

EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT AND CIIIEl: LENDING OFFICEIZ 

EXECITTIVE VICE PRESIDENT, TREASURER, AND CHIEF FISANCIAL 
OFFICER 

Robert J. Ricciardi* 
EXECITTIVE VICE PRESIDENT, CIIIEP CREDIT POLICY OFFICER, AND 
SECRETARY 

John G. Roman 
EXECTTTIVE VICE PRESIDENT, WEALTH MANAGEMENT 

*Aso oil,ccr d the Cr,rporation 

BRANCH OFFICES 
801 Lancaster Avenue 
Bryn Mawr, Pennsylvania 19010-3396 
18 West Eagle Road 
Havertown, Pennsylvania 19083 

39 West Lancaster Avenue 
Paoli, Pennsylvania 1930 1 

330 East Lancaster Avenue 
Wayne, Pennsylvania 19087 
O n e  Tower Bridge 
West Conshohocken, Pennsylvania 19428 
312 East Lancaster Avenue 
Wynnewood, Pennsylvania 19096 

WEALTH MANAGEMENT 
10 South  Bryn M a w  Avenue 
Bryn Maw, Pennsylvania 190 10 

............................................................................................................................................................................ 
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FAMILY OFFTCE SERVICES 
6 Soutli  Hryii Mawr Avenue 
Bryn Mawr, PeiirisyIvariia 190 I O  

T,TMTTED SERVICE OFFICES 
Beaumont a t  Bryn Mawr Reliremeiit Community 
Bryn M awr, Pennsylvania 

Belljngliaiii Retirement Living 
West Clicstcr, Pennsylvania 

Martins l<uii I& Care ~ o m m u i i i t y  
Media, t‘ciiiisylvania 

lioscm 0 1 1  t PresLyterian Vi ILge 
~Osell1011~, ~ ~ 1 1 1 1 ~ ~ 1  Will i il 

The Quadrangle 
I Iclverlord, I’ennsy I vim i a 

WaverIy Heights 
Glac lyne ,  l’eiiiisylvaiiia 

White Horse Village 
Newtowri Square, Peiiiisylvania 

ANNUAL MEETING 
Tlie AtimiaI Mecting oI SllareMcIcrs of Rryii Mawr 
Rank Corporation will Le lield in  WynJliarri Alumnae 
House, H V J ~  Mawr College, Hryii Mawr, PennsyIvania, 
on T~iesday, A p i I  IS, 2003, at  2:OO p.m. 

STOCK LISTING 
Bryri Mawr BaiiL Corporation coiiiii1011 slock is tradetl 
over-the-counter aricI is listcd on the NASL>AQ Natioiial 
MarIwt Systerri under thc  syii1Lol BMTC‘. 

FORM 10-K 
A copy of tbc  CorporaLioii’s I:orm I 0-K, including 
liriaricial statciiieiit scliecl tiles as kIcJ witl-1 tile Securities 
and ~jxcliaiige Commission, i s  ilvailable widiout charge to 
sharchoIJers tipor1 written rctpcst to RnLerl J .  Iiicciartli, 
Secretary, Bryri Mawr 13aiiL C‘orpora Lion, 801 I .ancaster 
Avenue, Bryn Mawr, FL-nnsylvania 1901 13-3396, or  via 
e-mail to I,ricciardi(I~)hl-ntc.cnrri. 

.... ” . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNTTY 
The C‘oryoratio~-1 continues its coinmiti-nent to equal 
opportuniiy erriployment and (Lies ri(3 t discrirriiiiatc 
agaiiisi minorities or woiiicii witli res Ject to recruitiiient, 
1-iiring, Iraining, or prcn1-lotiorl. 11 is t I le ,ulicy ,]I tlie 
~ n r p o r a  lion t o  coiiiply voltiritarily witli L e  practices ol 
Mirrriative Action. 
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Selected Financial Data 

For h e  ycars endad Dcccnitwr 31. 

Interest income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
. . . . . . . . . . .  

hpp1ic:alle incomc: taxes . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . .  
Net income , . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
l'cr share data: 

Earnings pc:r comnnn share: 
. . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Basic . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . .  
Dividends declared . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

outstanding . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . .  
Dilutive potwtial corninon shares . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Adjusted weighted-averagr shares . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

At Dcccrrilrrr 31, 

Total assets . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
. . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
. . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . .  
. . . . . . . . .  

1:or the YCHI'R erltied 1)cccnitrer 31, 

Sclected financial ratios: 

Net income to: 
Net interest rnargiri . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Average total assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Average shareholders' equity . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Average sliareliolders' equity to avt:rage t ts . . . . . . . . . . .  
Dividerids declared per share to net income per hasic common 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . .  

* Reclassified for comparative purposes. 

8 29,412 $ 
4,484 

24,928 
1,000 

23,928 
26,127 
34,329 
15,732 
5,525 

8 10,207 $ 

30,31 1 $: 

24,000 
1,200 

22,800 
21,410 
30,323 
13,mo 
4,770 

6,:303 

9,120 $ 

31,985 $ 
7,072 

24,013 
250 

24,663 
17,772 
20,741 
3 2,004 
-443.3 
8,201 $ 

28,917 $ 
,5,857 

22,460 
250 

22,210 
18,086 
28,456 
1 1,840 
3,870 
7,061 !$ 

20,082 
5,976 

20,106 
150 

19,956 
14,610 
24,229 
10,337 
3,480 
0,857 

$ 2.34 $ 2.11 !$ 1.92 !$ 1.83 $ 1.58 
$ 2.31 $ 3.05 tf; 1.85 $ 1.75 $ 1.51 
$ 0.76 $ 0.72 !$ 0.68 $ 0.60 $ 0.46.5 

4,353,195 4,325,520 4,202,838 4,949,403 4,327,297 
65,010 127,000 161,408 103,915 225,708 

4,418,205 4,452,610 4,454,240 4,543,928 4,5.5:3,005 

(Ill tllollsu~lds) 

2002 2001 2000 1000 1008 

$j 577,242 ,$ 476,823 $ 444,424 $ 4:3b,X20 $ 391,840 
520,502 427,1!05 389,053 30S,O52 3,57,683 
483,620 391,050 :186,(366 371,068 :342,357 

62,007 s7,307 ,50,970 40.71Q 42,22 1 

651,105 442J73 325,040 306,147 290,675 

2002 2001 2000 1999 1908 

10.85% 12.02Yn 11.47% 10.70% 10.78% 

5.34% 5.I!:,% ( l . 33% 0.12% 5.99% 

2.01 % 2.05 1.94% 2.01% 1.91% 
17.26% l h .05Yn  17.20% 17.97% 17.06% 
11.67% 12.09% 11.28% 11.10% 11.17% 

32.48% 34.12% 35.42% 32.79 Yn 29.43% 
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Management’s Discussion and Analvsis 

The following is a discussion of the consolidated results of 
operations of Bryn Mawr Bank Corporation and its 
subsidiaries (the “Corporation”) for each of the three years in 
the period ended December 31,2002, as well as the financial 
condtion of the Corporation as of December 31 , 2002 and 
2001. The Bryn Mawr Trust Company (the “Bank”), Bryn 
Mawr Brokerage Company, Inc. (“B M Brokerage’,), and 
Joseph W. Roskos & Co. (“JWR & Co.”) are wholly-owned 
subsidiaries of the corporation. Bryn Mawr Finance, Inc. 
(“B M Finance”) is a wholly owned subsidiary of JWR & Co., 
Insurance Counsellors of Bryn Mawr, Inc. (“ICBM”) and 
Bryn Maw Settlement Services, Inc. (“BMSS”) are wholly 
owned subsidiaries of the Bank. This discussion should be 
read in conjunction with the Corporation’s consolidated 
financial statements beginning on page 34. 

SPECIAL CALTIONARY NOTICE REGARDING FORWARD 
LOOKING STATEMENTS 

Certain of the statements contained in h s  report may 
constitute forward-looking statements for the purposes of the 
Securities Act of 1933, as amended and the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and may involve known 
and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors which 
may cause actual results, performance or achievements of the 
Corporation to be materially different from future results, 
performance or achievements expressed or implied by such 
forward-looking statements. These forward-looking 
statements include statements with respect to the 
Corporation’s financial goals, business plans, business 
prospects, credit quality, credit risk, reserve adequacy, 
liquidity, origination and sale of residential mortgage loans, 
impairment of goodwill, the effect of changes in accounting 
standards, and market and pricing trends loss. The words 
“expect,” “anticipate,77 “intended,” “plan,” “believe,” 
“seek,” “estimate,77 and sirmlar expressions are intended to 
identify such forward-looking statements. The Corporation’s 
actual results may differ materially from the results 
anticipated by the forward-looking statements due to a 
variety of factors, including without limitations: 

the effect of future economic conditions on the 
Corporation and its customers, includmg economic 
factors which affect consumer confidence in the 
securities markets, wealth creation, investment and 
savings patterns, and the Corporation’s interest rate risk 
exposure and credit risk; 
changes in the securities markets with respect to the 
market values of financial assets and the stability of 
particular securities markets; 
governmental monetary and fiscal policies, as well as 
legislation and regulatory changes; 
changes in accounting requirements or interpretations; 

d 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

the risks of changes in interest rates on the level and 
composition of deposits, loan demand, and the value of 
loan collateral and securities, as well as interest rate risk; 
the effects of competition from other commercial banks, 
thrifts, mortgage companies, consumer finance 
companies, credit unions, securities brokerage fums, 
insurance companies, money-market and mutual funds 
and other institutions operating in the Corporation’s 
trade market area and elsewhere including institutions 
operating locally, regionally, nationally and 
internationally together with such competitors offering 
banking products and services by mail, telephone, 
computer and the Internet; 
any extsaordinary events (such as the September 11, 
2001 events and the U.S. Government’s response to 
those events); 
the Corporation’s success in continuing to generate new 
business in its existing markets, as well as its success in 
identdymg and penetrating targeted markets and 
generating a profit in those markets in a reasonable time; 
the Corporation’s ability to continue to generate 
investment results for customers and the ability to 
continue to develop investment products in a manner 
that meets customers needs; 
the Corporation’s timely development of competitive new 
products and services in a changing environment and the 
acceptance of such products and services by customers; 
the Corporation’s ability to originate and sell residential 
mortgage loans during a decreasing or low interest rate 
environment; 
the failure of assumptions underlying the establishment 
of reserves for loan losses and estimates in the value of 
collateral, and various financial assets and liabilities and 
technological changes being more difficult or expensive 
than anticipated; and 
the Corporation’s success in managing the risks involved 
in the foregoing. 

All written or oral forward-looking statements attributed to 
the Corporation are expressly qualified in their entirety by 
use of the foregoing cautionary statements. All forward- 
looking statements included in this Report are based upon 
information presently avdable, and the Corporation assumes 
no obligation to update any forward-lookmg statement. 

Critical Accounting Policies 

The Corporation’s most critical accounting policy is the 
allowance for loan loss. The allowance for loan loss 
represents management’s estimate of the losses that may 
occur. The allowance is consistently monitored to determine 
its adequacy. Ongoing review of credit standards, the level of 
delinquencies on loan products and loan segments, and the 
current state of the economy are included in this review. 



A c h d  losses may differ from management’s estirmtes. This 
is explained in more detail or1 page 23. 
In Decemdm 200 1 the Corpation adopted Statement ol 
k‘inmicial Accourhig Standard No. 142 “ ( i o o d d  mid Other 
Intangible Assets,’ (“SFAS No. 3 42”). In compliance with 
SFAS No. 142, the Chrporatiori Is no longer amohi i ig  
goodwill. (hodwill coiitiriries to be tested for imnpirmerit 
i~~ui id ly ,  using a valuation inetliod requiring projected cash 
flows into futur.c periods. Actrid cash flows (:odd thffcr fro111 
r~imagerncnt~s estimates; diereby alfecting the dctemined 
va~ue of  die, g o o d d .  ~ i e  valuation analysis of goodwill iu 
Decei&e~* 2002 determined that inlpainneiit of goodwill jli 
the amount of $400,000 existed. ‘llie impaired goodwill was 
witten-down 111 the fourth qnarter. of 2002, 
A s  a part of its Mortgage Rmking segment’s loxi servichg 
busiriess, tlic R ~ L L  rectlr<is tlie va~iie d mortgage servicing 
lights (“MSRs”) as an asset at tlie time of‘ the sale of loaiis oil 
which scnicirig is retained by the Rank.  MSHs are arnortizcd 
over the ijnticipated life of the respective loaris being 
serviced. Tn ai effort to avoid any potential irnpaimicnt of 
tlic MSRs, amortization is accelerated as [he reniairlirig lives 
of the respective loaris shorten. When loans arc paid off, any 
~uianiortized balariccs of die respective MSRs are written off 
against curreiit Ck~rporation net income. Periodically, an 
hidepeiicicnt vduation of tlic MSR bdariccs ori the Biink’s 
books is rriade to deteImninr if ariy impinnerit ol the MSRs 
exists. Should axiy imnpairment of the MSRs exist, tlie hal:uice 

impairment. 
New Accounting Pronoiincemenls 
During 2002, the Firlatirid Accozulting Stantlards BoarrJ 
issued four accouriting standards (tlie “Accounting 
Starirlarcls”). Thc Accounting Stariciarrls are c€iscussed in 
detail in Note 3 - Summary of Sipificiuit Accountinig 
Policies to tlie C~onsolidateci Financial Statements, wllidi are 
a part of this report. 
ST(:NIFICANT ITEMS Foii 2002 

Dividend Increase 
B:iscd on a contitiiiecl growth in record eiwiiiigs, die 
Corporation hicreased its quarterly dividend payment for 
2002 hy 6%, from $0.18 per shwe in 2001 to $0.19 per 
s h r e  in 2002. The (::orporation’s &viderid payout ratio was 
32.48%) ol basic eanlirigs per share for 2002, compared to 
34.12% for 2001. 
Continuation of thc Stock Repurchase Program 
Corporation m:wagemcnt continues to lelicve that the 
repiirrliasc of C:cirpor,r;ition’s stock is a heneficial use of 
Corporatiou capital. In “Octohr 2001 rnmagermrit was 
authorizcd to rcpilrcliase up to S% of the outstanding shares 
as of October 2001, while mt  spending riiore than 
$7,SO0,000. IJnder that protgrmi, l m r i  Noverrhcr 2001 

or tile M S R ~  woldcl clown by the moullt or tiie 

tllroiigli Septedwr ‘2002, the Corporation su 
rcpimcliasecl216,826 shares of Corporatiori stock, at a coat of 
$7,248,000, for an average cost of $33.43 per share. hi 
October 2002, Corporation inmagernent was authorized to 
piirchaw mi adchtiond 4% of tlic oiitstmduig shares as of 
October 2002 or 175,000 shares. This latest stock repurchase 
p r o p m  is authorized to extend for a five-year period, with 
annual reviews by die Corporation’s Board of Directors. ‘l’lie 

ck rcpmchasiiig activity, from 1997 
r 31,2002, resulted in the repurcllase of a 

shares of tlic Corporation’s common stock, 
at a cost of $17,93G,000 for nn average purchase price of 
$30.16 per share. The use of the Corporation’s capital to 
repurchase stock is a catalyst to increasing the Corporation’s 
ret~mi on equity, as well as oflsethig the dilutive effect on 
e a i ~ ~ i g s  per share of issuing stock options. While net income 
increased hy 12% lrom 2001 to 2002, diluted earnings per 
share grew by 13%, primarily d ~ c  to die repurchase of sliiires 
inider tlicse programs. 

Strong Asset Quality 
The Corporation consistently strives to enhance the quality of 
i t5  loan portfolio. The lomi portfolio cotinues to grow and the 
average loan sizc has hicreased substmitially which niecessitates 
the constant review of both die credit staridards mid the lomi 
loss reserve. The state or the economy is also taken into 
consideration in tlie evaluation of the adequacy of die loan loss 
reserve. Diuirig 2002 economic growth slowed considerbly 
arid the direat of war may further dampen f i i t ~ w  economic 
powtti. In adhion to evaluating the credit quality of the loari 
portfoh, the state of die economy at DecerdJer 31, 2002 was 
considercd in evaluating t l iu  adequacy of the loan loss reserve. 
Sirice 1997, nonperfonrlirig assets have decreased from 
$1,169,000 to $4.5,000 at year-end 2002. Other real estate 
owned (““OREO”) bdances arnomiting to $25,000 at year-end 
1997 had heeri totally elirniiiated hy year-end 1999 and there 
were iio such lalances at December 31,2002. ‘llie 
Corporation measures various ratios in basis points. Each basis 
point represents 1/100 of 2 %  (the “Basis Points”). 
Noriperfomling loans have decreased 96% over the prior five 
years to $45,000 at year-end 2002. Nonperfomlirig loaris as a 
pe,rcentage of total loans amounted to 1 basis point at 
neceniher 31  , 2002. DelinTxeIicies, 30 days or more past due, 
amounted to 1 6  Basis Points of total outstanding loans at 
December 3 1,2002. At I) 
Ioiuis, as a percentage of total 1oa.m mioinited to 1 Basis Point 
iuid delinrpiencies miowited to 11 Basis Points. Wde 
progress has been rrade in decreasing tlie levels of deluicpent 
arid now pedonning assets, the current state of die ecoiiomy, 
the threat of war and its potential effect 011 the economy, as 
well as additiorid loa11 deterioration irdierent within tlic loari 
portfolio, associated with n decluic in die eco~iomy, lias 
prorriptcrl ai increase in tlic loari loss reserve. 

rher 31,2001 nonperlomfiig 



Mortgage Banking Segment Generates Record 
Origination and Sales of Residential Mortgage Loans 

The continuing low interest rate environment spurred 
refinancing activity in the residential Mortgage Banking 
segment. Residential mortgage loan sales in the secondary 
mortgage market grew by 70% from $327,296,000 in 2001 
to $555,615,000 for 2002. This increase in loan sale activity 
accounted for an 85% increase in gains on related loan sales, 
from $5,218,000 for 2001 to $9,647,000 for 2002. This 
activity provides a revenue stream that is counter-cyclical to 
declines in net interest income caused by decreasing interest 
rates. Because of declining interest rates on an asset rate 
sensitive earning asset portfolio, as indicated in Table 4 - 
RateNolume Analyses on page 22 of this report, net interest 
income, related to interest rates, decreased by $2,316,000 
from 2001 to 2002. However, continued growth in earning 
assets, primarily in the loan portfolio, was responsible for a 
$3,235,000 increase in net interest income, offsetting this 
decline and providing an overall increase in net interest 
income of $919,000 over 2001. 

Historically, when interest rates begin to rise, the 
Corporation benefits from its asset interest rate sensitivity, 
increasing its net interest margins, while decreasing its 
revenues from the refinancing business activity. Should 
interest rates remain at the present lower levels, the 
possibility exists that the number of customers desiring to 
refinance residential mortgage loans could decrease. A 
potential decrease in residential mortgage loan refinances, 
prior to market interest rates moving upward, could have a 
detrimental impact on the Corporation’s net income, due to a 
potential decrease in revenues from this counter-cyclical 
activity, without a corresponding increase in the 
Corporation’s net interest income or net interest margin. 

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

Overview 

The Corporation reported a 12% increase in net income to 
$10,207,000 for the year ended December 31,2002, the 
eighth consecutive year of record earnings for the 
Corporation. Net income for 2001 amounted to $9,126,000. 

Basic earnings per share amounted to $2.34 in 2002, an 
11 YO increase over $2.1 1 for 2001. Diluted earnings per 
share increased by 13% to $2.31 for 2002 from $2.05 for 
2001. The dilutive potential common shares added to the 
weighted-average shares outstanding were 65,010 and 
127,090 for 2002 and 2001, respectively. 

These record earnings results for 2002 were due to a number 
of factors. As presented on Table 1 - Line of Business 
Segment Analysis, profits from the Mortgage Banking 
segment grew by 72%. Interest rates continued to remain low 
during 2002, including residential mortgage interest rates. 

These low rates helped produce a sipficant increase in the 
mortgage refinancing activity in the Mortgage Banking 
segment of the Corporation. Mortgage loan sales for 2002 
were ahead of 2001 by 70% and is primarily responsible for 
a 79% increase in other income in the mortgage-banking 
segment. Continued low interest rates, compared to 2001, 
and a 50 basis point decline in the prime rate in the fourth 
quarter of 2002 were primarily responsible for a 51 basis 
point decrease in the banking segments net interest margin. 
However, a 14% increase in average outstanding earning 
assets in 2002, compared to 2001, more than offset the 
decreased margin and increased the banking segment’s net 
interest income, year to year, by 5%. This increase in net 
interest income is the primary reason for a 3% increase in the 
banking segment’s segment profit for 2002, compared to 
2001. 

Despite a fee increase in the third quarter of 2002, fees from 
Wealth Management services decreased by $1 17,000 or 1 % 
compared to sirmlar revenues for 2001. An overall decline in 
the value of the stock market is primarily responsible for a 
decline in the value of assets under management, thereby 
lowering trust fees in 2002, compared to 2001. The year 
2002 marked the first full year that the Wealth Management 
segment had the benefit of its wealth sales consultants. The 
results of their new business efforts and an increase in the fee 
schedules charged to clients in July 2002, were primarily 
responsible for increases in wealth management fees in each 
of the final two quarters of 2002, compared to similar 
quarters in 2001, increasing by $124,000 and $86,000, for 
the third and fourth quarters, respectively. The decline in 
market values in 2002, compared to 2001 was partially 
responsible for a 17% decline in Wealth Management 
segment profits in 2002 compared to 2001. 

Return on average assets (“ROA”) for the year was 2.01%, 
compared to 2.05% in 2001, while return on average equity 
(“ROE”) for 2002 was 17.25% compared to 16.95% in 
2001. 

EARNINGS PERFORMANCE 

Lines of Business 

The Corporation continues to have four significant business 
segments or lines from which it derives its earnings, one of 
which is the Banking line of business. Additional earnings 
streams are obtained from its Wealth Management line of 
business and its Mortgage Banking line of business-the 
origination, servicing and sale of mortgage loans to the 
secondary mortgage market. The fourth segment, included in 
“All Other” in the following segmentation analysis, derives 
net revenues from financial services and products, offered 
through the Corporation’s subsidiaries, as well as the Bank’s 
subsidiaries, ICBM and BMSS and JWR & Co.’s subsidiary 
B M Finance. 



Follom&ig is a segmentation analysis of the residts of 
operations for those lines of business for 2002 and 2001: 
TABLE 1 - Line uf Busiiicsn Segment Analysis 

2002 

Wealth Mort nge All 
(rlrrllurs in thuuannh) Rnnking Memlgrincnt Unnfirrg Other* Coiididated 

Net interest income.. . . . . . .  $24,697 $ - $ 200 5 31 $24,928 
- - 1.000 Less loan loss orovision 1.000 - 

Net interest income after 

Other income: 
Fees for investment 

management and trust 
sewices . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Service charges on 
deposit accounts . . . . . .  

Other fees and service 
charges . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Net gain on sale of 
loans . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Gain on sale of olher real 
estate owned . . . . . . . . .  

Olher omratin0 income . . 

loan loss provision . . . . . .  23,697 

I 

1,822 

235 

6 

1.374 
- 

200 

- 

- 

1,512 

9,647 

- - 

23,928 

8.620 

1.822 

1,747 

9,653 

4.768 
- 

.~ 
Total other income . , , , , 3,437 8,623 11,159 3,391 26,610 
flthar emPnw9‘ 

Salaries-regular . . , , , . . 7.822 3,464 1.088 1,775 14,149 
Salariesdther . . . . . . . . .  1,918 291 692 77 2.978 

. . . . . . . . . .  3.529 Fringe benefits 2,437 706 88 298 
Occuoancv . . . . . . . . . . . . .  3.072 580 172 427 4,251 
Orhei opefating 

expenses . . . . . . . . . . . .  4,726 891 2.642 1,440 9,899 

Total other expenses . . . . . .  19,975 5,932 4.882 4.017 34,806 

Segment profit (loss) . . . . . .  5 7,159 52,691 $6,477 $(595) 515,732 
% of segment profit (loss) . . 46% 17% 41% (4%) 100% 

2001 
~ ~~ 

Wcdiln Mongagv All 
(dullui-a in ritousunda) Honking MHnngement Rvnktxig“* Other* (hxolidnted** 

Net interestincome . . . . . . . .  $23.480 5 - $ 243 $286 524.009 - - 1,200 Loan loss provision - . . . . . . . .  1,200 
Net interest income after 

Other income: 
Fees for investment 

management and trust 
services . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Service charges on 
deposit accounts . . . . . .  

Other fees and service 
charges . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Net gain on sale of 
loans . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Galn on sale of other real 
estate owned . . . . . . . . .  

Other operating income . . 
Total other income . . . . . . . .  
Other expenses: 

Salaries-regular . . . . . . .  
Salarie-ther . . . . . . . . .  
Fringe benefits . . . . . . . . . .  
Occupancv . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

loan loss provision . . . . . .  22,280 

- 

1,540 

294 

3 

1,547 
3.384 

8,201 
1,505 
1,653 
3,109 

- 

- 

8.737 
- 

- 
- 
- 
11 

8.748 

3,010 
202 
585 
632 

243 286 

- I 

1,004 - 
5,218 - 
- I 

I 3,476 
6,222 3,476 

883 1,954 
252 77 
66 315 

178 444 

22.809 

8,737 

1,540 

1,298 

5,221 

5,034 
21.830 

14,048 
2,036 
2.819 
4,363 

- 

Other opefating 
expenses . . . . . .  4,061 1,088 1,326 1,002 1,477 

18.729 5,517 2,705 3,792 30,743 

Segment profit (loss) $ 6,935 53,231 53,760 $ (30) $13,896 

* Bryn Mawr Bank Corporation, Insurance Counsellors of Bfyn Mawr, Inc. Bryn Mawr 
Brokerage Corn an Inc Bryn Mawr Finance, Inc. Bryn Mawr Settlement Services, Inc. 
and Joseph W. !&$to$ i’co. have all been aggregated in All Other. 

Yo of segment prof11 (loss) . . 50% 23% 27% 0% 100% 

** Reclassified for comparative purposes. 

The talde reflects operating profits or losses of each coiprntc 
h ie  of hiisiriess hefore hicime taxes and excluding inter- 
company interest iiicornc and expense, related 10 inter- 
company horrowi ngs. 
1 lie Raiikirig scperit’s percentage ol operatirig profits stood 
at 46%) for 2002, corqxircd to 50% lor 2001. Tllc Wealth 
Mmagerrieiit r;egment7s percentage ol operatirig profit was 
17%,, t l o ~ l  ~ ~ O I I I  23% lor 2001. l‘hP Mortgage HW&I# 
segment’s share of operating prolits increuscd from 27% in 
2001 to 41% iii 2002, while tlie “All Other” segment, 
incliicluig the Corpratiori arid dl non-l;-uAing sibsictiark, 
went froin 0% hi 2001 to (4%) hi 2002. Tlic primary reason 

r 1  

for this decrease in tlie ““ALL 
loss for JWR & Co. for 2002, corriprcd to a $293,000 profit 
for 2001 arid tlic write-dowi of $400,000 hi g o o d d  
associated with JWR & Co. 

llntikirig Llrw of Bi4siiiw.n 

Tlic Rank’s average outslanclirig enming assets for 2002 of 
$455,142,00O hicreaseti 14% from $400,650,000 for 2001, 
Average outstarihig loans grew by 150/0 in 2002. ‘ 1 1 ~  largest 
dollar hicrease in average outslanchig loans oc:cw~ed in 
coiimiercid mortgage loans, up $44,258,000 or 7!I% over 
2001 average halanccs. As a rcsult of a review of tlic 
cotmriercial loan portl‘olio, it was iletennincd that 

coinrnert:ial loans were coinl-nercial inortpngc loans. 
‘I’herefore, $ 18,000,OOO in loan halances was ~ra~isferrcd 
from corrlrriercial loruis lo corrlrriercial mortgage loaris at the 
heginning of 2002 (the “‘1l’ransfeir.cd TJoaris”). Average 
residential rnortgage loan halaiices grew hy $24,834,000 or 
S6% i n  2002, compared to sirnilar merage out,siandiiig 
balmices iii 2003 . Average construction loan balances 
increased $~10,330,000 or 6% in 2002, conip:~rcd to tlie 
S ~ C  period i r ~  2001. Reflccting the ellcct of tlic ‘Transfemd 
I,oans referred to previously, the average commercial 1oa11 
halances were reduced by $lX,000,000 lor 2002, compared 
to 200 1. T h i s  rechuctjon in iivcrage loan balances was 
respoiishle lor average outstxiding corrlrnercial loan ba1anr:es 
decreasing $1 1,h13,000 or 8% froin 2001 avcrage ~ a n c e s .  

The average outstanchg l-ralai~ces ol  i-he Bank’s consimier 
loan portfolio decreased by $13,221,000 or 13% frorn 
2001’s average niitstancling bdanccs. As residentid rriortgage 
loan interest rates rerriitiricd low in 2002, rriariy fixed rate 
home eqnity borrowers, in the consimier loxi p o r M i o ,  chose 
to refinmice tlicir existhg 1oa.n balmces into lower rate 
resiclentid first mortgage loans. Lower dernand for inclrcct 
aiitoiiiol-rile loa~is, due to hicreaseti competition from 
atitornobile niamifac~urrrs for iicw aiitoinobile loiuis, was 
also responshle for tlic clacrease in average i:o~isi~~rier loan 
balmices in 2002. The average outstanchi# halances of 
rerieral f lu ids sold ctccreased by :j%l in 20d~ comnpared to 
2001 levels. Averitgc outstanding invesnncnts decreased hy 
1 1% for 2002 c:ornparetl to 2001. Tlie decrease hi average 
niitstarichg balariccs ol‘ both fcdcral furids sold arid 
investments pai-tinlly fimdecl die growth in the loaii portfolio. 

Average outstanching total tleposits increased 13%) in 2002 
compared to 2001. Tlie largest tiollar increase occurred in 
die Hank’s NOW account nvarage b i h c e s ,  up $18,1di8,000 
or 19%. Average oixtstiuding nowinterest bearirig clerriarid 
deposit bduiccs iucreascd by $15,072,000 or 15%, wid: 
average money market accoini~ balances ir1crcase:d by 
$1 0,083,000 or 20%. Average outstmitluig savings deposits 
increased 7% or $2,732,000, while the werage balarices of 
certificates ol deposit (“CD”s) gsew by $1,251,000 or 2%. Tn 

segment was a $73,000 

approxirnalcly $18,000,000 in loans c:ategorizetl as  



order to meet loan fundmg and licpdity requirements, the 
Bank increased its reliance on short-term borrowings, 
increasing the combined average outstanding borrowings of 
short-term borrowings and federal funds purchased by 
$7,019,000 or 53%. The increases in the average balances of 
lower costing Now account, non-interest bearing demand 
deposit accounts and money market accounts are the 
primary reasons for the cost of funds decreasing 60 Basis 
Points. However, decreases in the prime rate during 2002, 
partially offset by increases in earning assets, specifically in 
higher yielding loans, are primarily responsible for a decrease 
in the net interest margin to 5.34% in 2002 from 5.85% for 
2001. An expanded discussion of net interest income follows 
under the section entitled “Net Interest Income”. 
Other income from the Banking segment increased by 2% in 
2002 compared to 2001. Service charges on deposit accounts 
increased 18% due primarily to both a decrease in the 
earnings credit applied to deposit accounts, resulting in 
additional service charge revenues for the Bank and an 
overall increase in the fee structure for service charges on 
checking accounts. Other operating income decreased by 
11% in 2002. Included in 2001 was a non- recurring 
recovery of $345,000. Exclusive of this recovery in 2001, 
other operating income increased 14%. 
Total other expenses of the Banking line of business 
increased by 7% in 2002 compared to 2001 levels. While 
regular salaries decreased by 5%, other salaries, primarily 
incentives based on profitability and fringe benefits increased 
by 27% and 32%, respectively. Partially offsetting these 
increases was a decrease in occupancy expense, while other 
current operating expenses increased by 16%. Included in 
other operating expense in 2002 was a $134,000 recovery of 
costs associated with a prior problem loan. Exclusive of these 
costs, other operating expense increased 7% year to year. 
The 5% increase in net interest income during 2002 was the 
main cause of the operating profits of the Banking line of 
business increasing 3% in 2002 compared to 2001. 
Wealth Management Line of Business 
The Wealth Management Division reported a 17% decrease 
in operating profit for 2002 compared to 2001 levels. A 
combination of a $415,000 increase in total other expenses, 
due to increased salary and benefits expenses and a 
$1 17,000 or 1% decrease in total investment management 
and trust fee income was primarily responsible for this 
decline in profitability. An overall decline in asset values 
related to a decline in the value of the stock market was the 
primary cause for this decrease. The market value of assets 
managed decreased from $1,707,000,000 at December 31, 
2001, to $1,551,000,000 as of December 31,2002. 
Other expenses of the Wealth Management line of business 
increased by $415,000 or 8% in 2002 over 2001 levels. 
The primary reason for this increase was an increase in the 
Wealth Management staff, including a full year’s cost of the 

wealth sales consultants, hired in the fourth quarter of 2001. 
Regular salary expense increased $454,000 or 15%, while 
incentive based other salaries grew $89,000 or 44%. Related 
fringe benefit costs also rose, up $121,000 or 21% from 2001 
levels. Partially offsetting these expense increases was a 
$52,000 or 8% decline in occupancy expenses and a $197,000 
or 18% decline in other operating expenses. During 2001, 
hiring costs were incurred to hire the wealth sales consultants 
and the wealth management head. No such costs were 
incurred in 2002. Outside hiring costs decreased by $363,000 
in 2002, compared to 2001 and is the primary reason for the 
decrease in other operating expenses year to year. 

Mortguge Bunking Line of Business 

The operating profit of the Bank’s Mortgage Banking line of 
business increased 72% in 2002 compared to 2001. During 
2002, mortgage interest rates continued to remain low, 
making refinancing more attractive to borrowers. In 2002, 
the Mortgage Banking line of business had a 70% increase in 
the dollar volume of loans sold to the secondary mortgage 
market and a 15 basis point increase in the yield on sales, 
compared to 2001 levels. The increase in the volume of loans 
sold is the main reason for the increase in the mortgage 
banking segment’s profitability. 

Following is a table showing the volume of residential 
mortgage loans originated and sold to the secondary 
mortgage market, the total net gains realized, and the yield 
on these loan sales: 

TABLE 2 - Summary of Residential Loan Sale Activity 
(dollars in thousands) 2002 2001 

Volume of loans sold . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $555,615 $327,296 
Loan fees and net gains on sales . . . . . . . . . . .  9,647 5,218 

As of December 31,2002, the Bank serviced $606,657,000 
in residential mortgage loans for others, compared to 
$406,093,000 in loans serviced for others at year-end 2001. 

Bryn Mawr Bank Corporation 

The Corporation is a one-bank holding company, generating 
intercompany revenues from the rental of Corporation owned 
properties to the Bank. The Corporation’s expenses are 
primarily of an administrative nature. Based on a December 
2002 discounted cash flow analysis of the value of goodwill 
on the Corporation’s books, related to JWR 8c Co., it was 
determined that an impairment of goodwill, in the amount of 
$400,000 existed. Therefore, in the fourth quarter of 2002, 
the Corporation wrote-down its balance of goodwill by 
$400,000 to $2,405,000. The impairment was primarily due 
to a decline in revenues in 2002, compared to previous years. 
Corporation management is taking steps to enhance future 
revenue streams and reduce expenses in future periods, and 
has made a change in JWR 8c Co. management. 

Yield on sales 1.74% 1.59% . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  



lrnsururice Counsellors q[ Hryri Mnrur, Itic. 

In Janiiary 1098, the Bank established a 11ew wlicllly owned 
s S s i d i q ,  1C:Bhl (a full-wrvicc instlr;mcc agency), to erithle 
tlie H d  to offer j1is11raii~e prodticts tuid related services to 
its customer base. ICBM offers a full hie of life, prope- arid 
c a s d t y  mid conlrriercial lines to its customer base. DilrUig 
2001, K R M  entered kite a marketing agreement, to share 
commissions eanied on referrals from ICBM (the “Mmketing 

with a fid service insurance agency located in 
the Corporation’s irrmiediate market area (the “ Agency”) . 
Dimirig 2002, die Marketing Agreement wm terrrhiatcd by 
m i i t d  consent with die Agency. Costs associated with the 
tenination of tlie Marketing Agreeinelit, as well us 
commissions shared wider tlie Marketirig Agreement, are tlic 
primary reasons for a loss of $5 1,000 in 2002, cornpared to a 
profit of $23,000 in 2001. 
Blyi Muwr Settlement Seroicps, lnc. 
In Jiuinary 2002, the Bmk forrned RMSS to be a hl i ted 
p m i e r  in a lirrlited liahdity partnership, established to 
provide title search mid Astract services to Bank customers 
refilaricing their resitleritial mortgage loam. BMSS entcred 
into mi agreerrient with Coni tnoriwcaltli Land Transfer 
Corripmy, whereby BMSS would receive 70% of the profits, 
after expenses, from tlie partnership (the ““Partnersllip 
Agreenriciit”). Due to die large vol~rne of rriortgage lom 
refinaricirig in 2002, as described in the Mortgage Barding 
segment, BMSS e a m d  $192,000 in net income for 2002. 
T L ~  were no suc~i  earnings in 200.1. 
R y n  Maiur Brokpragc Corrpurty, Ir ic  

The  Corporatiori est&lislicd B M Brokerage in January 
1999, in order to rri&e hokerage services available to its 
client base though a networhig agreement with ITVcst 
Finaricid Services hic. During 2002, R M Brokerqe reported 
a net loss of $5,000 corripmd to it rict profit of $15,000 in 
2002. Beginning in Jammy 2003, B M Brokerage was made 
mi inactive subsidiary. In the future, hrokerage services will 
be provided by h e  Bank. 
Joseph W Roskos 61. Clo. 

On April 1, 1099, tlie Chrporrition acquired JWR & Go., 
effective Jmuary 1, 1999, for $4,195,000, though a 
combination of Corporation stock mid cash. Crooctwill in die 
illrioiitit of $3,300,000 was recorded on the Corporation’s 
books, to be amortized over a 20-year Me. JWR & Co. was 
ac:cpkccl to exparid the products arid senices beirig offered 
by the Corporation through its sut)sidiaries. JWR 8c Co. 
provides fa r rdy  hiisiness office services to high-net-worth 
individuals, irichichig accoilnting and tax preparation 
services, consultirig and fiduciary support services. I h i n f :  
2002, JWR 8c Co. reported ti net loss of $73,000, compared 
to net profits of $292,000 it1 2001 a id  $295,000 in 2000, 
liefore die inter-company interest expense, paid to its 
subsidiary, R M Finance. As previously mentioned, it was 

determined that ari inipainnent in tlic amount of $400,000 
existed. Therefore, in the fourth quarter of 2002, die 
Corporation wrote down its balance of g o o d d  by 
$400,000. 
Uryn Muwr Firmice, h c .  
B M Firmice was incorporated on December 20,2001, as a 
wholly owied subsidiary of J WR PE Co ILS prirriary p iqose  is 
to provide financing opportunities to tlie Corporation and its 
sibsiciiaries. fi;xclnsive of inter.-compaiy interest Income 
from J W R  & Co. mid die Rank,  R M Fi~imce had losses of 
$8,000 arid $9,000 for 2002 aid 2001, rcspectively. 
Net Interest Income 
Diiririg 2001, die Bark’s prime rate decreased by 475 Basis 
Points, to 4.75% and remained tliere cluririg 2002, until die 
foirtli quarter of 2002, when tlie prime rate decreased 
another 50 basis points. Thjs tlecrease iri tlie prirrie rate in 
2002, compared to 2002, compressing the net interest 
marpi, wm puljally offset by a 14% increase in average 
outstandhig emling assets. T h e  result was a 3 %  or $899,000 
decrease in total interest irico.me. A decline in interest rates 
paid on deposits during 2002, cornpared to 2002 deposit 
rates, aid strong growth in the Bank’s low cost and 11011- 

interest bearing deposits was prirrlltrily responsible for a 29% 
or $2,818,000 decrcase iri interest expense fur h e  yeas eridecl 
Dccemher 31,2002. ms resulted in an overall increase in 
rict interest income of 4% or $929,000 over the year ended 
December 31,2001. Average earning assets grew 14%) in 
2002, compared to 2001 levels. ‘Hie average outstanding 
balances or federal funds sold decreased & 3% arid average 
hvestrnents decreased by 1 1 %. Tlic yield 011 earning assets 
decreased by 110 Hasis Points, from 7.6% for 2001 to 6.5% 
for 200’2. 
Total average deposits iricrcasetl 13%. The largest increases 
occrirred in the Bank’s lower costing or non-interest hearirig 
deposits. Average NOW account balances increased by 
$18,668,000 or 3 9%, average non-interest-be~ig derriarid 
deposits increased by $15,072,000 or 15% arid average 
balances of money market accoimts increased by 
$1 0,083,000 or 20‘Yo. Statement savings average balances 
grew by $2,732,000 or 7% and CD halances grew by 
$1,251,000 or 2%. In ari effort to increase liquidity, average 
outstanding short-temi borrowings grew by 53% over similar 
balances for 2001. A condination of the ability to lower 
overall interest rates paid for interest-hearkg deposits and 
short-term borrowings arid strong growth in die low arid no 
cost deposit balances was prirnarily responsible for a 60 basis 
point decrease in the average cost of fiiiicls for 2002, 
corriparcd to 2001 I The decrease in the yield on earnirig 
assets, partially offset by the decreased cost of fimds was 
directly respomihle for the Bark’s net interest margin, 
defined as riet interest income, cxclusive of loan fees, as a 
percentage of average earnirig assets, decreasing from 5.85% 
for 2001 to 5.34% for 2002. 



The following table shows an analysis of the composition of net interest income for each of the last three years. Interest 
income on loans includes fees on loans of $620,000, $574,000 and $625,000 in 2002, 2001 and 2000 respectively. The 
average loan balances include nonaccrual loans. All average balances are calculated on a daily basis. Yields on investment 
securities are not calculated on a tax-equivalent basis. 

TABLE 3 - Analyses of Interest Rates and Interest Differential 
2002 2001 2000 

(dollars in thousands) 

Assets: 
Cash and due from banks . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Interest-bearing deposits with other 

banks* . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Federal funds sold* . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Investment securities available for sale: 

Taxable* ........................ 
Tax-exempt* ..................... 

Total investment securities . . . . . . . . . . .  

Average 
Interest Rates 

Average Income/ Earned/ 
Balance Expense Paid 

$ 29,934 $ - -% 

3,651 54 1.5 
7,275 112 1.5 

21,373 1,038 4.9 
939 39 4.2 

22,312 1,077 4.8 

Loans*.. .......................... 421,904 28,169 6.7 
Less allowance for loan losses . . . . . . . .  (5,459) 

Netloans.. ...................... 416,445 28,169 6.8 
Other assets - - ....................... 27.365 

- - 

Total assets ..................... 
Liabilities: 
Demand deposits, 

noninterest-bearing . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Savings deposits . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Time deposits ...................... 
Short term borrowings . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Federal funds purchased . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Other liabilities ..................... 

$506,982 

$1 17,949 
221,725 
79,332 
18,609 

1,665 
8.551 

$29,412 

$ -  
1,556 
2,509 

386 
33 - 

- 

-YO 

0.7 
3.2 
2.1 
2.0 - 

Total liabilities .................... 
Shareholders’ equity . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Total liabilities and shareholders’ 
equity . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Total earning assets* . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Interest income to earning assets . . . . .  
Interest expense to earning assets . . . .  

Net yield on interest-earning 
assets ........................ 

Average effective rate paid on interest- 
bearing liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Average effective cost on total deposits 
and short borrowings . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Net interest margin . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Earning assets to interest-bearing 

liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

447,831 4,484 - 
59,151 - - 

$506,982 $ 4,484 - 
$455,142 - - 

- 6.5 
1 .o 

- 
- - 

- 1.4 - 

- 1.42 - 

Average 
Interest Rates 

Average Income/ Earned/ 
Balance Expense Paid 

$ 25,006 $ - -% 

623 21 3.4 
7,521 321 4.3 

23,331 1,302 5.6 
1,604 66 4.1 

24,935 1,368 5.5 

367,571 28,601 7.8 
(4,636) 

362,935 28,601 7.9 
24.479 - - 

- - 

$445,499 $30,311 - 

$102,877 $ - -% 
190,242 2,023 1.1 
78,081 3,768 4.8 
11,959 467 3.9 
1,296 44 3.4 
7.202 - - 

~~ ~ 

391,657 6,302 - 
53,842 - - 

$445,499 $ 6,302 - 
$400,650 - - 

7.6 
- 1.6 

- - 
- 

6.0 - - 

2.2 - - 

- 1.42 - 

Average 
Interest Rates 

Average Income/ Earned/ 
Balance Expense Paid 

$ 22,345 $ - - 
1,623 90 5.5 
6,174 373 6.0 

26,482 1,558 5.9 
2,495 108 4.3 

28,977 1,666 5.7 

346,921 29,856 8.6 
- - (4,352) 

342,569 29,856 8.7 
23.897 - - 

$425,585 $31,985 - 

$ 96,215 
192,141 
70,819 
10,342 

1,283 
6,765 

377,565 
48,020 

$ -  
2,697 
3,596 

693 
86 
- 

7,072 
- 

-% 
1.4 
5.1 
6.7 
6.7 
- 
- 
- 

$425,585 $ 7,072 - 
$383,695 - - 

8.3 
1.8 

- - 
- - 

6.5 - - 

2.6 - - 

1.40 - - 

*Indicates earning assets. 
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The following tablc shows tlic cffect of cliaiiges iii vdiiines 
and rates on interest income arid interest expcnw. 

volume or rate were allocated proportionately ljctween 
volum~ arid rate. Iritere5t income on loans i~icluilcd 
incrcases (decrcases) in fccb on loarls of $40,000 jri 2002, 
$(51,000) iii 2001, a i d  $160,000 in 2000. 

TABLE 4 - Rde/Vohimr Analyses 

Variances which were riot specifically attrilut. '1 1 1 1 e to 

(in Lhuunonrlnj 2002 va. 2001 

Inrrrcm~/(dpcrmae) Volume Rnir 'lulnl 

Interest Income: 
Interest-bearing 

deposits wlth Other 
banks.. . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 51 $ (18) $ 33 

Federal funds sold . . . , ( I O )  (199) (209) 
Investment securities 

aVallabl8 for sale: 
Taxable . . . . . . . . . . , (106) (158) (264) 

Loans .,....,......... 3,917 (4,349)" (432) 

Total interest income . , 3.823 (4.722) (899) 

Tax-exempt , . _ . . . .  (29) 2 (27) 

~ 

Interest expense: 
Savings deposits . . . . . 330 (797) (467) 
Time deposits , , . . . . . . 57 (1,316) (1,259) 
Short term 

borrowings . . . , . . _ .  191 (272) (81) 
Fed funds purchased . . 10 (21) (1 1) 

Total interest 
expense , , , . . . . , . . 588 (2,406) (1,818) 

Interest differential . . . . . $3,235 $(2,316) $ 919 

$ (43) 5 (26) $ (69) 
69 (121) (52) 

(179) (77) 12581 
'(37) ' (5) '(42) 

1,676 (2,931)* (1.255) 

1.488 (3.160) (1.8741 

(30) (644) (674) 
379 (207) 172 

96 (322) (226) 
2 1441 (42) 

447 (1,217) (770) 

$1.039 $(1,943) 5 (904) 

* Iridiirlfrl in the Io( i i i  rule rmricrricc uvis u (decrtwsi'J incrensr i i i  iri1west 
iricomc r d n t d  to rton-pe!jhriririg loutis ?f $(73,0OU) atid yi55,OOO in 
2002 wid 20111, respe(:tiiri+. The iroriciitccs dur to rutel itwliide thr 
efiect c!j'rionuccri~cil l r ~ r i s  becni~sr r i o  i r t Iwest is mrrierl on sr~ch I o i m s .  

The 30/0 decline in interest income for 2002 was priinarily 
attributidjlc to a 110 lmsis poirit decline in tlic average 
yield or1 e:irning assets, from 7.6% in 2001 to 6.5% for 
2002. A 14% increase in average earning a.ssets from 
$400,650,000 for 2001 to $455;142,000 for 2002 helped 
offset the decline in  interest income due to decreases in 
iiitercst rates. Primarily due to the decreases in tlie prime 
rate, interest income related to the rate variance decreased 
by $4,723,000. A $3,824,000 increase in interest income, 
attributable to volume growth, was tlie rcsult of a 15% 
increase in average outstanding loans. The average yield 
011 loans decreased 110 basis points from 7.8% in 2001 to 
6.7'Yo in 2002. I h c  average yield on federal funds sold 
decreased 280 Basis Points to 1.5% for 2002, corapared to 
4.3% for 2001. Tlic yield on tlic investment portfolio 

decreased by 70 Busis Points from 5.5% in 2001 to 4.8%) 
in 2002. 

While increased average outstanding deposits, short-tern- 
1:iorrowing and fetleral I'mtls piirchased ciliiscd interest 
cxpeiise to increase by $588,000, the ability to lower rates 
paid oii cleposits caused a decrensc in interest exy)erisc of 
$2,406,000, T h e  iiet rcsult was nn increase i n  net iiitercst 
income of $1319,000. 

As of Decei&r 3 1  , 2002, outstaiiding lomi balances 
increased 1 
significant loan growth occurr~d iii cornmertial mortgage 
loaris, which iiimased l y  $35,084,000 or S2%. 'I'his 
incrensc i s  inclusivc of the $18,000,000 in Transfcrred 
Loans from c*oiiimercial and inthistrial loans to 
cormiicrcial mortgage loaris in Jaiiuary 2002. Seci:md 
mortgage loan baiancPs, originated as a part of ~Iic 
Mortgage Bariking segment, inr:reased hy 513,767,000 01' 
62% ani1 held-fo~*-sale mortgage loaris iiicreased by 
$11,470,000 or 613O/0. Corruiicrcial arid iodiistrial loans, 
ret'lectirig the Transferred Loans., thereby rcdiicing 
commerciaI and intlustrial loan balances Iry $ IS,nt)O,OOO, 
grcw hy $3,075,000 or 2%, Coiistruction loans grew by 
$?,I 11,000 or ;3q50/0. A 31% tlecrease in oiitslaiidiri(~ 

b. , 
consiiiner lonns is due primarily to continued run-off of 
indirect automobile loans, which WAS plariried hy tlie 
Bank, its well as tlie rcpaymenc h y  lionie equity loaii 
l~ori-owers, as they chose to refinance these balances iriln 
Iirst inortgages. The yield o r i  average earning assets 
decreased by 1 .I0 Basis Points from 7.(;0/0 in 2001 to 6.5%) 
in 2002. 

over December 3 1, 200 1 , The most 

Average deposits increased $47,800,000 or 13Yo during 
2002. A17erage oulstanding CD halaiices increased by 2%. 
Average oiitstanding NOW accoiint lalances grew 19%, 
average non-iiilcrest-bearirig demand deposits were up by 
15%) and average outstading rrioriey market account 
balances grew by 20%. Savings account average balarices 
and CD average balances decreased b y  7% arid 2%, 
respectively. Average outstanding short-term borrowings 
and fetleral funds p d i a s e d  iricreased hy 53%. The cost 
of funds for the Rank averaged 1 .0% for 2002 compared 
to 1.6% for 2001 , B 00 basis poirit decrease. 



Loan Loss Provision 
The Bank decreased its annual loan loss provision from 
$1,200,000 for 2001 to $1,000,000 for 2002. During 2001 
the Bank had write-offs totaling $1,169,000. The majority of 
these write-offs were for one commercial borrower. A small 
recovery was subsequently received on the charged-off loan. 
In 2002, the provision was made to allow for additional loan 
deterioration inherent within the existing loan portfolio, 
associated with a decline in the economy, as well as the 
growth in the loan portfolio. The allowance for loan losses 
was $6,114,000 and $4,928,000 as of December 31,2002 
and 2001, respectively. Delinquencies, as a percentage of 

to 
Total 
Loans 

$2,940 36.4% 
494 5.9 

1,107 52.4 
907 5.3 

outstanding loans, amounted to 16  Basis Points and 11 
Basis Points as of December 31, 2002 and 2001, 
respectively. Nonperforming loans amounted to 
$45,000 at December 31,2002, practically even with 
$43,000 at December 31, 2001. There was no ORE0 
recorded on the Bank’s books at either year-end. The 
allowance for loan losses, as a percentage of 
outstanding loans, was 1.31% as of December 31, 
2002, compared to 1.23% as of December 31, 2001. 
Bank management has determined that the 2002 loan 
loss provision was sufficient to maintain an adequate 
level of the allowance for loan losses during 2002. 

to to to to 
Total Total Total Total 
Loans Loans Loans Loans 

$2,729 39.1% $1,193 41.5% $ 151 39.7% $ 427 31.8% 
214 5.1 7 3.0 33 4.2 81 4.7 

1,019 45.0 56 38.3 228 35.4 161 39.3 
316 10.8 248 17.2 279 20.7 301 24.2 

A summary of the changes in the allowance for loan losses and a breakdown of loan loss experience by major loan category 
for each of the past five years follows: 

666 - 

TABLE 5 - Allowance For Loan Losses 

~. _ _  
650 - 1 2,816 - I 3,709 - I 3,130 - 

(dollars in thousands) 

Allowance for loan losses: 
Balance,Janualyl . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Consumer . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Total charge-offs . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

December 31, 
2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 

$4,928 $ 4,320 $4,400 $4.100 $4,074 

(51) (12) 22* (22) - 
(68) (178) (355) (209) (179) 
(68) (1,169) (399) (197) (243) 

220 63 3 87 100 

10 
24 38 66 44 19 

- 
- 

116 - 476 - 
- - - 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . .  Total recoveries 254 577 69 247 119 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Net recoveries / (charge-offs) . 186 (592) (330) 50 (;;;) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Provision forloan losses 1,000 1,200 250 250 

Balance, December 31 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $6,114 $4,928 $4,320 $4,400 $4,100 

* The negative charge-offof $22,000 in real estate-mortgage loans in 1999 rejects the adding back to the loan loss reserve of an amount previously 
Net recoveries / (charge-offs) to average loans . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  0.04% (0.16%) (0.10%) 0.02% (0.05%) 

charged ofi in conjunction with the acquisition of other real estate owned. 

TABLE 6 - Allocation of Allowance for Loan Losses 
The table below allocates the balance of the allowance for loan losses by loan category and the corresponding percentage 
of loans to total loans for each loan category for the last five years: 

December 31, 

2002 I zoo1 I moo I 1999 I 1998 

(dollars in thouxandx) 

Balance at end of period applicable to: 
Commercial and industrial . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Real estate-construction . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Real estate-mortgage . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Consumer . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Unallocated . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

% 
Loans % I Loans I LZns I Loans !lo I Loans 

Yo 

The loan loss reserve allocation reflects a reserve based on specific loan loss reserve allocations on loans reviewed 
individually as well as an average historical loan write-off percentage for loans in each specific loan category not 
individually reviewed and is also increased by an additional percentage to reflect current market conditions. Refer to 
page 38 for further discussion of the Corporation’s loan review process. 
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Other Income 
‘Ihe followirig tahk detiiils other iricorric for the years 
elided Decemlwr 31 ~ 2002 and 2001, and the percent 
change from year to yeill’: 

TABLE 7 -  Other Income 
2002 mol*  0% C:IlHIlgC 

Fees for trust services . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 8,620 $ 8,737 (1 70) 

accounts ..................... 1,822 1,540 10% 
Other fees and service charges . . . .  1,747 1,298 35% 

office services . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  2,229 2,564 (13%) 

Service charges on deposit 

Nst gain on sale of loans . . . . . . . .  9,653 5,221 85% 
Fees earned from family business 

Investment advisory and brokerage 
fees . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  21 6 296 (27%) 

Insurance commission income . . . . .  275 252 9% 
Other operating income . . . . . . . . . .  1,565 1,502 4% 
Total other income . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $26,127 $21,410 22% 

* Reclassified for comparative purposes. 

In addition to mt interest income, the Bank’s three 
operating scgrneiits, as well as TCBM, BMSS, B M 
Brokerage, and JWll & C h . ,  generate various streams of 
Ice-based income, including investmerit managerncnt itnd 
trust iiicoirie, service cliarges on deposit a(:co~irits, loan 
servicing income, consulting fees and gaidlosscs 011 loan 
sales. 

As disciisscd in the “liilics of Business” section or1 
pages 17-19> tlie iricreasc in other. incorne in 2002 from 
2001 levels was primarily a result of an increase in 
reve~i ties frora gains on the sale of residential rriortgage 
loans in tlic secondary market. 

Fees lor investment managerncnt arid trust services 
declined $117,000 or 1%) from ycar to year. Kefer to the 
discussion imder tlic lieadirig “Wealth Management Line 
of Business on page 19 of this report. 

Sai-vica r:harges on dcposil accounts increased $282,000 
or 18%, diie prirnarily to a dccrease in the earnings crarlit 
applied to offset charges to deposil accoiirits. This 
decrease ’111 the earnings credit ullowed tlie Rarik to 
iricr+ease its actiial Tees charger1 over 2001 levels. Tlle Rarik 
also revised its fer schediile lor services in 2002, therchy 
increasing fee income. 

Other fecs arid service charges increased $449,000 or 
35‘%, from $‘I ,298,000 for 2001 to $1,747,000 for 2002. 
Tlie primary reason for this iticrease was associated with 
tlie increase in residential rt:finuncing activity, discussed in 
thc Mortgage Banking segment. Hesidential mortgage 
loans were sold by tlic Rarik with servicing retained. This 
generates a ~iiorithly servicing fec. During 2002, R 

significant increase i r i  the loans sold with servicing 
retained was the prirriary reason for t h i s  increase. 

As discussed iii the “Mortgage Banking Line of Riisiness” 
section, the $4,429,000 or XS%o increase in gairis on the 
sale of rPsidentid mortgage loaiis was directly a t t r ibu tdh  

to a$228,319,000 or 70% inrrease in the volume of 
residential mortgage loans sold, compared to 2001, as well 
as a 15 hasis point increase in the yield or1 the sale of 
resideiitial mortgage loans lo the secondary mortgage 
markct. 

Fees from the JWR & Co. family office business amounted 
to $2,229,000 for 2002, a $338,000 or 15% decrease 
from fees eitrned in N01.  This decrease is hrertly 
atirhutable to declining profit niargirls on existing clients, 
;is well as it decrease in estate fees earried in 2002, 
cornpared to 2001. Corporation management is taking 
steps to increase the profit margin and generate mw 
business in future periods. 

Tiivcstrriciit advisory a d  brokerage fees declined $80,000 
or 27% from $296,000 for 2001 to $216,000 for 2002. 
Tlir primary reason for this decline was the decision to 
rliscontinixe the operations of Bryn Mawr Asset 
Management, Tnc. (“BMAM”) during 2001 , causing an 
$82,000 decline in investrncnt advisory fees in 2002 
compared to 2001 I 

Insiiraiic*e, corrirnission iricorric increased $23,000 or 9% 
from $252,000 for 2001 to $275,000 for 2002. During 
2002, ICBM paid the Agency, under the terms of the 
Marketiiig hgrcerncnt, $46,000 in commissions. Excliisivc 
of this payment, insmance conirnission iricorne grew by 
27%. 

Other operating income increased $03,000 or 4?‘0 ‘In 2002 
from 2001. bduded in 2001 revenues was a non- 
reciirring recovery of$345,000. Excliisive of this m r i -  
recurring recowry, other operating inccmie iricreased by  
35’1’0, primarily due to sweep fees paid to the Barik with 
respect to cornrnercinl arid personal account balances, 
which w e i ~  trarisferrcd to off-balame sheet mutual funds. 

Other Expanses 

The following tahle details other expenses for the years 
ended 1)ecernher 3 1 , 2002 and 2001, arid the percent 
change from year to year: 

TABLE 8 - Total Other Expenses 
2002 2001* Yo Change 

1 % Salaries-regular . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $14,149 $1 4,048 
46% Salaries-other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  2,978 2,036 

Employee benefits,. . . . . . . . . . . . . .  3,529 2,819 25% 
Occupancy expense 1,942 2,111 
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment. .. 1,914 1,964 
Advertising ..................... 1,065 959 11% 
Professional fees . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  1,028 552 86% 
Computer processing . . . . . . . . . . . .  61 3 596 3% 
Stationery and supplies . . . . . . . . . .  341 360 (5%) 
Insurance ...................... 145 - 165 (loo%{ Goodwill amortization . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Writedown of impaired goodwill . . . .  400 - 100% 

Other operating expenses . . . . . . . .  4,602 3,970 
Total other expenses . . . . . . . . . . .  $34,323 $30,323 

. . . . . . . . . . . . .  {%{ 

163 (11% 

Amortization of MSRs . . . . . . . . . . . .  1,617 580 179% 
16% 
13% 

* Reclassified for comparative purposes. 



Other expenses increased for the year ended December 31, 
2002, by $4,000,000 or 13%. Regular salaries, consisting 
of regular, part time and overtime salary expense, the 
largest component of other expenses, rose 1 ‘/o. Increases in 
regular salary expenses for 2002 were partially offset by 
the elimination of regular salary expense associated with 
BMAM, whose operations were discontinued at 
December 31, 2001. As of December 31, 2002, the 
Corporation’s consolidated full-time equivalent staffing 
level was 264.0 compared to 256.0 as of December 31, 
2001. 

Other salaries increased $942,000 or 46% from 2001 to 
2002. The increase in 2002 was directly related to 
incentive-based compensation, which is directly related to 
corporate profitability. 

Employee benefit costs increased $710,000 or 25% in 
2002 from 2001 levels. Of this increase, $623,000 relates 
to the Corporation’s pension plan and SERP, which 
combined, produced an expense of $549,000 in 2002 
compared to net income of $14,000 in 2001. A 
combination of declining pension asset values and 
decreasing returns on the pension assets are primarily 
responsible for this increase in pension and SEW 
expenses. An economic environment at current levels in 
future periods, producing lower yields on the pension 
plan’s assets, could result in additional increases to the 
pension expense in future periods. As presented in Note 11 
to the Consolidated Financial Statements, which are a part 
of this report, “Pension and Other Postretirement 
Benefits”, a number of factors are responsible for the 
change from net pension income for 2001 to pension 
expense for 2002. Interest costs, associated with the 
pension plan, increased by $76,000 for 2002, compared to 
2001, and the amortization of the actuarial gain decreased 
by $348,000, while the expected return on plan assets 
decreased by $151,000. These three items account for 
$515,000 of the $623,0000 increase in pension expense 
from 2001 to 2002. 

Occupancy expense decreased 8% or $169,000, from 
$2,111,000 for 2001 to $1,942,000 for 2002. Repairs and 
maintenance and insurance for the Bank decreased by 
$102,000 and $45,000, respectively, accounting for 
$141,000 of the $169,000 decrease. Furniture, fixtures 
and equipment expenses decreased by $50,000 or 3% 
from 2001 to 2002. Decreases in depreciation of furniture, 
fixtures and equipment and repair and maintenance costs 
are primarily responsible for this decrease. 

Advertising expense increased $106,000 or 11%, 
reflecting increases in the Corporation’s advertising 
campaign in 2002, compared to 2001, specifically radio 
advertising. 

Professional fees increased by $476,000 or 86%. The 
primary reason for this increase was an increase of 
$216,000 in Bank and Corporation legal fees, due to a 
non-recurring recovery of legal fees in 2001 of $221,000. 

Insurance expense decreased by $18,000 or 11%. 
Insurance expense is composed of the premiums paid to 
the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (the “FDIC”) 
for deposit insurance, as well as the cost of the 
Corporation’s business insurance coverage. FDIC 
insurance premiums remained even with 2001 levels. The 
cost of the Bank’s business insurance remained almost 
level with 2001 expenses, due to a significant portion of 
the related premiums being negotiated for a 3 year term, 
of which 2002 was the second year. 

Under Statement of Financial Accounting Standard 
No. 142 -“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”, unless 
impairment of goodwill is indicated, goodwill will no 
longer be written off. Therefore, in 2002 goodwill was not 
amortized, compared to amortization of $165,000 in 
2001, all related to JWR & Co The impairment test of the 
balance of goodwill related to the JWR & Co. acquisition 
resulted in an impairment of $400,000, taken in the 
fourth quarter of 2002. 

The amortization of MSRs increased $1,037,000 or 179% 
from 2001 to 2002. This increase is associated with the 
increase in the residential refinancing activity discussed in 
the Mortgage Banking segment. As residential mortgage 
loans that were sold by the Bank with servicing retained 
are repaid, as a part of a refinancing, the balance of the 
respective MSRs on the Bank’s books must be fully 
amortized. During 2002, significant amortization of 
MSRs, related to the increased mortgage refinance 
activity, generated an expense of $1,617,000, compared to 
$580,000 in 2001. 

Other operating expenses increased $632,000 or 16% 
from $3,970,000 in 2001 to $4,602,000 in 2002. During 
2001, the Bank reported a recovery of other expenses 
associated with a prior problem loan of $134,000. 
Increased residential mortgage loan sale activity in 2002 
also generated increased related expenses, such as 
appraisal fees, loan pair off fees, etc. Other operating 
expenses associated with the increased mortgage lending 
activity increased by $522,000. Exclusive of the non- 
recurring recovery in 2001 and the increased mortgage 
lending related expenses in 2002, other operating expenses 
decreased by $24,000 or 1% in 2002, compared to 2001. 
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Income Taxes 
Federal income taxes for 2002 were $5,482,000, 
compared to $4,770,000 f;or 2001. This represents an 
effective tax rate of 34.8% arid 34.3% for 2002 arid 2001, 
respective1 y. Tnrorne taxes for financial reporting piirposes 
differ from the amoiint cornputed by applying the 
statutory rate to income before taxcs, due primarily to tax- 
exempt income from certnin loans and investrnerit 

urities. 1nc:lided in 2002 applicahle incoine taxes was 
3,000 in Penrisylvariia State income taxes for BMSS. No 

such tax expense was incurred in 2001, See Note 10 to the 
Consolidated Financial Statements,) which are part of this 
rrporl. 

FINANCIAL CONDTTTON 
lnvcntmenl Securities 
Management has elected to classify 100%, of the 
investment portfolio as available for SHIP,. Therefore, the 
investment portfolio was ca rrierl a t  its estiiriated rnnr*kct 
value of $22,242,000 arid $26,222,000 as of 

mher 3 1 , 2003 and 200 1 , respectively. The 
amortized cost of tlie porhl io  as of T I  
was $21,894,000, resiiltiiig in net urirealized gains of 
$348,000. The amortixed cost of the portfolio at  

er 3 1 , Z O O l  was $25,807,000, resultirig in iict 
ed gains of  $41 5,000. 

The matiirity distribution ar1d weighted average yields 011 

a fully tax-equivalent basis of investment secnrities at 

TABLE (3 - Investment Purlfolio 

mber 3 1 ,  2002, are ns  follows: 

Matiiriri; ,Miiiiiring 
fllllrl rI . l~rn 

(dollam in thousuncbj 

Obligations of the U.S. 
Government and 
agencies: 

Book value . . . . . . . . . . .  
Weighted average 

yield . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
State and political 

subdivisions: 
Book value . . . . . . . . . . .  
Weighted average 

yield . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Other investment 

securities: 
Book value . . . . . . . . . . .  
Weighted average 

yield . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Total book value . . . . . .  
Weighted average 

yield . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

$1,016 $18,805 5 - $ - $19,821 

5.1% 4.4% - I 4.5% 

451 

6.5% - - 6.5% 

I 451 - - 
- 

- - 110 1,860 1,970 

- 
I 3.7% 3.5% - 

$1,016 $19,256 $110 $1,860 $22,242 

5.1% 4.5% - 3.7% 4.8% 

hi addition to $3,004,000 in iriitturitics during 2002, 
$15,OO0,000 in investirierits was callcd and $33O,000 of 
Fetieral 1 lorrie J.,oan stork was retleeiried. Diirirlg 2003, 
purrlimes of investment securities ainoimteci to 

$14,43 1,000. Those trarisiwtioris, mid thc $07,000 
dcrrease in iiiirealixcd gain., 011 the irivestrncilt portfolio 
and $4,000 in net irivestrricrlt amortization (luring 2002 
were primarily resporisihk for the $:3,98O,OOO or 15% 
decrease in the investment portfolio from 1) 
200 1, to Det:embcr Y 1,  2002. At Decerihtr 
apprixiiaately 80% of thc investniert portfolii i ronsisted 
of fixed ratc C1.S. Chveniineiit and U.S. Government 

tierivativc invcstnie~its aritl does riot plan to piirrhase ariy 
of tliose invcstmvnts in the fore 

Loans 
For fiiiaricial reporting pi i rposes, h t h  lhcd and floating 
ratr home eqnity Ioaiis, collateralized hy mortgages, arc 
iiicluricd i n  othrr perniarieiit rm~*tgagc loans. Floating rutc 
pcrsonal lines of ceredit lonns (tlir Rank's ''( :reditLint." 
pr~)rliirt) are inchicled in cnnhiiiner loam. 
A breakdown of tlir lnan portfolio hy iiiajor catvgories at 
December 31 for earh of tlie last five ycars is as fi)llows: 

TASLX 10 - Loan Portfolio 

ur i t i rs .  T h e  Corporutioii ilcics nn t  own ariy 

I31 1v1 lllll1Y 31 
(in thomatuh) 2002 2001 m o  1999 1098 

Real estate 
loans. 
Permanent 

mortgage 
loans . . . . .  $244.638 5177.479 $135,777 $134,495 $110,535 

Construction 

Commercial and 
industrial 

Consumer 

loans . . . . .  27,514 20,416 10,642 14,398 13,204 

loans . . . . . . .  170,114 167,452 147,398 119,835 89,368 

loans . . . . . . .  24,537 35,521 61,189 70,211 68,078 
Total . . . . . . . .  $466.803 $400.868 $355.006 $338,939 $281,185 

The maturity distrihntion of the loari portfolio, excluding 
loaiis secured hy  one-family resideritid prcipcrrly and 
consumer loans, at De:r:e~ibe~* 31, 2002, is shown Mow.  

Maturing 
frrirri 

Miitiiriiig 2004 
durinp thron 1 1  Miitiiliii r 

(in ~tuIli#atLl~R) 2003- SO& alicr 2 0 d j  Torn1 

Commercial, financial, and 

Real 
agricultural . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 55,093 $ 39,184 $ 75,837 $170,114 

estate-construction + + . 8,324 19,190 - 27,514 
Real estate-other . . . . . . .  7,140 29,052 67,780 103,972 

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 70.557 $ 87.426 $143.617 5301,600 
Interest sensitivity on the 

above loans: 
Loans with 

oredetermined rates . . $ 18.290 $ 36.845 $ 15,131 $ 70,266 
Loans with adjustable or 

floating rates . . . . . . . .  163,454 64,688 3,192 231,334 
Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $181,744 $101,533 $ 18,323 $301,600 

There are 110 si*hetiuled prepaymctits iui the loaris 
iiicludcct i n  thc tnatiirity tlis1~ilutioii5 



TABLE 11 - Loan Portfolio And Nonperforming Asset Analysis 

Past Due Past Due 
30 to 89 90 Days Total 

Current Days or More Loans 

$ 78,713 $409 $- $ 79,122 
103,934 38 - 103,972 
61,426 99 19 61,544 
244,073 546 19 244,638 

20,924 - - 20,924 
- 6.590 6.590 - 

(in thousands) 

Real estate loans: 
Permanent mortgage loans: 

Residential . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Commercial . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Home equity . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Total permanent mortgage loans . . . . . . .  
Construction mortgage loans: 

Residential . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Commercial . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Non- Other Total Non- 
performing Real Estate Performing 

Loans* Owned Assets 

$- 

19 
19 

- 
$- $- 
- - 

- 19 
19 - 

- - - 
- - - 

~ ~ 

Total construction mortgage loans . . . . . .  27,514 - - 27,514 

Total real estate loans . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  271,587 546 19 272,152 
Commercial and industrial loans . . . . . . .  170.080 34 - 170.114 

~ 

- - - 
19 - 19 

- - - 
Total commercial and industrial loans . . .  170,080 34 - 170,114 
Consumer loans: 

Direct . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  6,004 15 14 6,033 
Indirect . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  10,752 91 6 10,849 
CreditLine . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  7,644 5 6 7,655 

Total consumer loans . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  24,400 1 1  1 26 24,537 
Unallocated reserve for loan loss . . . . . . .  - - - - 

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $466.067 $691 $45 $466.803 I $45 !xi- $45 

- - - 

14 
6 
6 
26 

- 14 
6 
6 
26 

- 
- 

- 
- - - 

Loan Loss 
Reserve 

Reserve for 
Loan Loss 
Allocation 

$ 377 
448 
282 

1,107 

376 
118 
494 

1,601 
2.940 
2,940 

223 
40 1 
283 

~ 

907 
666 

$6,114 

* Nonpe$orming loans are loans on which scheduled principal andor interest is past due 90 days or more and loans less 
than 90 days past due which are deemed to be problem loans by management. Total nonper$orming loans of $45,000 
includes the $45,000 in loans past due 90 days or more, on which certain borrowers have paid interest regularly. There 
are no loans less than 90 days delinquent included in nonpe$orming loans. 

The Bank’s lending function is its principal income 
generating activity, and it is the Bank’s policy to continue 
to serve the credit needs of its market area. Total loans at 
December 31, 2002 increased 16% to $466,803,000 from 
$400,849,000 as of December 31,2001. 

The largest growth in outstanding balances occurred in 
commercial mortgage loans, which added $18,000,000 
because of the addition of the Transferred Loans from the 
commercial and industrial loan balances. These balances 
increased by 52% or $35,684,000 during 2002, from 
$68,194,000 at December 31, 2001, to $103,878,000 at 
December 31, 2002. Exclusive of the Transferred Loans, 
commercial mortgage loans grew by $11,684,000 or 26%. 

Second mortgage loans, originated as a function of the 
Mortgage Banking segment, increased 62% or 
$13,767,000, from $22,058,000 at December 31, 2001 to 
$35,825,000 at year end 2002. 

Held-for-sale residential mortgage loans increased by 
69% or $11,470,000, from $16,556,000 at December 21, 
2001 to $28,026,000 at year-end 2002. The increased 
residential loan sale activity is the primary reason for the 
increase in held-for-sale balances, awaiting funding from 
the respective investors at each respective year-end. 

Mortgage loans, including fixed rate home equity loans 
increased by 8% or $5,863,000 from $70,937,000 at 
December 31, 2001 to $76,800,000 at year end 2001. 

Commercial and industrial loan balances grew 2% or 
$3,075,000 from $167,452,000 at December 31, 2001 to 
$170,527,000 at December 31, 2002. This increase in 
loan volume includes the decrease in commercial and 
industrial loan balances because of the Transferred Loans 
of $18,000,000, transferred to the commercial mortgage 
loan category. Excluding the effect of the Transferred 
Loans, commercial and industrial loans grew by 
$21,075,000 or 13%. Continued increased business 
development in the Bank‘s commercial lending market 
area is the primary reason for this growth. 

Consumer loans, consisting of loans to individuals for 
household, automobile, family, and other consumer needs, 
as well as purchased indirect automobile paper from 
automobile dealers in the Bank’s market area, decreased 
$10,910,000 or 31%, from $35,540,000 at December 31, 
2001, to $24,570,000 at December 31, 2002. Competition 
from automobile manufacturers’ credit facilities and lower 
costing financing from home equity loans continues to be 
a source of major competition for this product. 
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A s  of I)ecernber 31, 2002, the constriiction loan portfolio 
increased hy $7,111,000 or 3S%,  from $20,493,000 at 

mbcr 31,3001, to $27,607,000 at Deccmher 31, 
2002. As of December 3 1 ,  2002 and 2001, the 
construction lending portfolio had rieitlier ar iy  
nonperforming loans nor any loans clelinq1ient 30 (lays or 
more. 

Off-Balance Sheet Commitments 
The Bank has financial instrurncnts with off-l~alance sheet 
risk that are, necessary to help oiir customers meet tlicir 
financing oeerls. ‘rhese instrurncnts have elernents of 
credit risk that exc d tlie arriount recognized iIi the 
consolidated stater nts of financial conbtion. l‘hcse 
financial instruments inchuie comrriitrnents to exteiid 
credit, subject to certain terrris and coditions, of 
$174,256,000 :il Det:erndxr 31, 2002 and $138,805,000 
at T3ecemher 3 1, 200 1. Staridby letters of credit were 
$9,186,000 a d  $9,637,000 as of December 31, 2002 ariil 

for expanded chsciission of off-balance sheet 
rommitrnents. 

Mortgagc Servicing Hights 
A s  a part of its sale of residential mortgage loans to the 
secondary market, for tliose loans sold with die loan 
servicing retained hy tlic Rank, the Bank records MSHs as 
a11 asset. The MSRs are amortized over the expected l ives 
0 1  the respective niortgage loans. Due to the recent lower 
iii terest rate environment, the Corporation h:is 
significantly iricrea sed its residential mortgage origiIiation 
arid sale activity, thereby increusing tlie 1)alariccs of MSRs 
being recorded on its books. As of Deccmher 31,2002, 
MSRs recorded on the Corporatioa’s hooks arriounted to 
$3,956,000, a 79% increase over $2,206,000 in MSRs as 
of Decemher 31, 2001. MSlIs are recorded on the Sank’s 
hooks at values detcrmiiied by reviewing tlie current value 
of MSRs in tlic mortgage servicing market. The current 
vuluc of new MSRs heing recorded, A S  loans are sold with 
servicing retained, is reviewed periodically and any 
adjustmeiit to the initial basis point valiies heing recortled 
is clone in a timely manner. ‘ l h  I-)alance of residential 
mortgage loans serviccd h r  others amounted to 
$606,657,000 and $406,093,000 as of December 3 1, 
2002 aiid IleceInber 3 1, 2001 , respectively. Periodically, 
the hook val~xe of tlie MSRs on ihe Biirlk’s books is tested 
for irripairment. Shoulci any iizipairment occur, the MSK 
balaiices are written down against the Bank’s current 
incorne. 

IKI a lower residential rrior~gage loan interest rate 
erivironrnent, should mortgage loans that were sold by die 

rrhcr 31,2001, respectively. Please refer to Note 14 

Rank with the servicing retained be refinanced, the 
balance of the MSRs would he subject to arcelerated 
amortizalion, dius reduring the Bank’s income. Should the 
Bank relinarice the Iorz~is, the arcelerated arnortizat ion of 
tlic MSKs may be offset hy the rewrding of new MSRs, 
increasirig h e  gairi on the loaris sold, thereby reducing or 
eliminating the negative effect of the accelerated 
arnortization of the MSHs. Sliould the Bank riot refinance 
or replace the loans heing paid off, the Rank’s net income 
wodd he rcduced In the exterit of the aggregate 
accelerated amortization as the respective mortgage loans 
are paid off. Recause of tlic RarLk’s significantly increased 
volmic of MSRs, tlic adverse effect of writing olf the 
aggregatc arcelcrated amortization of the MSRs against 
the Bank’s net income could be significant. 

Deposits 
The Bank attracts deposits from within its market area by 
offering various deposit instruments, inrludirig savings 
acroiiiits, NOW accowit~, rrioriey market accoiints, and 
certificxtes of deposit. 

‘rota1 deposits inrreased 24% to $483,620,000 at 
her 3 1  2002, from $301 ,059,000 at year-end 
Short-term borrowings remairiecl level at 

$20,000,000 at both Decerder 3 1, 2001 and 
rrilcr 31, 2002. A more rneaiiingfnl ineamre oI the 

change in deposits arid short-term borrowings is average 
daily balances. As illustrated in Tablc 12, average daily 
deposit balariccs increased 13%). A comhiiiation of strong 
growth in low costing and non-interest hearing de~nand 
deposits, cornlined with the ability to lnwer overall 
interest rates paid for interest-bearing deposits and shnrt- 
term borrowings was primarily responsihle for a 60 basis 
point decrease in the average cost of furids for 2002, 
compared to 2001. The avcrage cost of lunds for 2002 
was 1.0% compared to 1.6% for 2001. 

1‘h following tahle presents die average daily balances of 
deposits and die percentage change for the years 
indicated: 

TABLE 12 - Average Daily Balances oflleposits 

(doihri  in thoiin.iirids] 

Demand deposits, 
non-interest-bearing , , . . . . 

Market rate accounts . , , . . . . 
NOW accounts . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Regular savings . . . . . . . . . . . 

Time deposits . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

~ 

$117,949 $102,877 14.7% $ 96,215 6.9% 

81,105 51,022 19.8% 50,633 0.8% 
117,864 99,196 18.8% 100.158 (1.0%) 
42.756 40.024 6.8% 41.350 13.2%) 

~ ~ 

221,725 190,242 16 5% 192,141 (1.0%) 

18% 70,819 10.3% 79.332 78.081 

$419.006 5371,200 12.996 $359,175 3.3% 



The following table shows the maturity of certificates of 
deposit of $100,000 or greater as of December 31,2002: 

TABLE 13 - Maturity of Certificates of Deposits of 

(in thousands) 
Three months or less . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $6,525 
Three to six months - 
Six to twelve months . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  1,804 
Greater than twelve months - 

$100,000 or Greater 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $8,329 

Capital Adequacy 
At December 31, 2002, total shareholders’ equity of the 
Corporation was $62,607,000, a $5,300,000 or 9% 
increase over $57,307,000 at December 31, 2001. 
Increasing the capital was the addition of earnings, after 
the payment of the dividends for the year, increased 
capital from the exercise of stock options, less shares 
repurchased in the Corporation’s stock repurchase 
program and a decrease in the market value of the 
investment securities year to year. As of December 3 1, 
2002, shareholders’ equity included accumulated other 
comprehensive income on investment securities and the 
supplemental pension, net of deferred taxes, of $41,000 
compared to accumulated other comprehensive income on 
investment securities, net of deferred taxes, of $274,000 at 
December 31, 2001. This change caused a $233,000 
decrease to shareholders’ equity from December 31, 2001 
to December 31,2002. 

The Corporation and the Bank are required to meet 
certain regulatory capital adequacy guidelines. Under 
these guidelines risk-based capital ratios measure capital 
as a percentage of risk-adjusted assets. Risk-adjusted 
assets are determined by assigning various weights to all 
assets and off-balance sheet arrangements, such as letters 
of credit and loan commitments, based on the associated 
risk. 

- 

The Bank’s risk-based capital ratios at December 31, 
2002 and 2001 are listed below. These ratios are all in 
excess of the minimum required capital ratios, also listed 
below. 

TABLE 14 - Risk-Based Capital Ratios 
2002 2001 

Minimum Minimum 
Actual Required Actual Required 

Tier I capital ratio . . . . . . . .  9.65% 4.00% 10.34% 4.00% 
Total capital ratio . . . . . . . .  10.85 8.00 11.53 8.00 

A significant increase in the Bank‘s total assets at 
December 31, 2002, compared to December 31, 2001, 
thereby increasing the denominator of both ratios 

presented at a faster rate than the numerator, net income, 
is primarily responsible for the decreases on both ratios in 
2002, compared to 2001. The FDIC: has created a 
statutory framework for capital requirements that 
established five categories of capital strength, ranging 
from a high of “well-capitalized’’ to a low of “critically 
under capitalized”. As of December 31, 2002 and 2001, 
the Bank exceeded the levels required to meet the 
definition of a “well-capitalized” bank. Management 
anticipates that the Corporation and the Bank will 
continue to be in compliance with all capital requirements 
and continue to be classified as “well-capitalized.” 

The Corporation’s ability to declare dividends in the 
future is dependent on future earnings. 

Risk Elements 
Risk elements, as defined by the Securities and Exchange 
Commission in its Industry Guide 3, are composed of four 
specific categories: (1) nonaccrual, past due, and 
restructured loans, (2) problem loans, loans not included 
in the first category, but where information known by 
Bank management indicates that the borrower may not be 
able to comply with present payment terms, (3) foreign 
loans outstanding, and (4) loan concentrations. Table 11 
presents a summary, by loan type? of the Bank’s 
nonaccrual and past due loans as of December 31,2002. 
It is the Bank’s policy to promptly place nonperforming 
loans on nonaccrual status. Bank management knows of 
no outstanding loans that presently would meet the 
criteria for inclusion in the problem loan category, as 
indicated under specific category (2) referred to above. 
The Bank has no foreign loans, and loan concentrations 
are presented in Table 6 - Allocation of Allowance for 
Loan Losses. Table 6 presents the percentage of 
outstanding loans, by loan type, compared to total loans 
outstanding as of December 31, 2002. 

Asset Quality 
The Bank is committed to maintaining and developing 
quality assets. Loan growth is generated primarily within 
the Bank’s market area, which includes Montgomery, 
Delaware, and Chester Counties. Loan and deposit growth 
is also generated in portions of Bucks and Philadelphia 
Counties. The development of quality loan growth is 
controlled through a uniform lending policy that defines 
the lending functions and goals, loan approval process, 
lending limits, and loan review. 

Nonperforming loans were $45,000 at December 31, 
2002, a 5% increase from $43,000 at December 31,2001. 
There were no ORE0 properties on the Bank’s books as of 
December 31.2002 or 2001. 



Total nonperfur rning assct s, wh i r l i  in cliidc no11 -a ccni ing 
aiid past due loaiis and other rea1 cstate ciwried, arc 
presented in tlic tiihle below for each of the five years in 
the period ended Dccernber 31 , 200%. 

TABLE 15 - Nonperfomiing Assets 

(in thorrxandm) 2002 200.1 2000 lrlcl!l 1098 
L)cc;rrrlbcl. 3 1  

Loans past due 90 days or 
more not on nonaccrual 
status: 
Realestate-mortgage . . . . .  $19 $ 15 $18 $ 19 $ 84 
Consumer.. , . . .. . . . . . . . . . 26 28 63 53 56 

interest has been 
Loans on which the accrual of 

discontinued: 
Commercial and industrial . . 
Real estate-mortgage . . . . . 
Real estate--construction . . . 

Total nonperforming loans . . . . 
Other real estate owned and in- 

substance foreclosed 
properties * . . I . . . . . . . . . . . 

Total nonpetforming assets . . . 

~~~~~ 

45 43 81 792 493 

$45 $ 43 $81 $792 $764 

All loans past due 90 days or more, except consumer loaris 
and home equicy mortgage louns, are placed on 
nonaccriinl status and any accrued interest income is 
reversed j kom current interest income. Such fcctors as the 
type arid size oj’the loan, the quulity of the collateral, arid 
historical creditworthiness of the borrower andor 
guarantors are considered by rnunagement in assessing 
the collectibility of such loans, Interest foregone on 
nonaccrual status loans was $11,000 for the year ended 
December 31, 2002. Interest earned and included in 
interest income on lhese loans prior to their nonpe$orming 
status amounted to $7,000 in 2002. 
*Refer to Note 2 to the consolidaled~t~ancial statements. 

The Bank maintains a Loan Review Committee (the 
“Committee”) that periodically reviews the status of all 
non-accrual, impaired loans, and loans criticized by the 
Bank’s regulators. An independent consultant is retained 
to review both the loan portfolio as well as the overall 
adequacy of the loan loss reserve. The methodology used 
to arrive at an appropriate allowance for loan loss involves 
a high degree of management judgement. It is the goal of 

this loa loss ~‘cservc adcqiiacy pr*ocess to provide a loan 
loss rescrve sufficicrit to address the Barlld~ risk ol loan 
losses, in the existing loan portfolio. During the rcview of 
tlic loan loss iwerve, tbr: Commit lee considers allocations 
o l  the loan loss rcservc to specific: loans or1 a loan-hy-loa~ 
hasis. Also considcred is an illherent loan loss in specilk 
pools of similar loans, based on prior historical loss 
activity arid tlie iinpact of‘ the current economic 
cnvironrnent. Tlie sum of all analyzed lom cornponents is 
conipared 10 die loan loss reserve Lalance, and any 
adjustments tlecmed necessary to the loan loss reseme 
halance arc rriade on a timely basis. 

The: Corporation is regulated and periodically inspected 
hy l l i e  Fcderal Rescrve Board, Tlie Rank, a state menibcr 
hank of the Federal Rescrve System and the Pennsylvania 
Department of Banking, is also regulated and periodically 
examined by hot11 these entities. Tliere are no 
recomrneiidafions by the regiila~ors, which woilld have a 
material effect on tlie: Corporation’s or Baiik7s asset 
qimlity, liquidity, capital resozirces, or results 0.F 

operations. 

Asset and Liability Management 
Through its Asset/Liability Committee ( “ALCOV7) and the 
application of Risk Management- Policies arid Procedures, 
the Bank seeks to iniiiimize its expovure to interest rate 
risk as well as to maintain sufficient liquidity arid capital 
compliance. 

Interest Rate Sensitivity 
The difference between interest sensitive assets and 
interest sensitive deposits, stated in dollars, is referred to 
as the interest rate sensitivity gap. A positive gap is 
created when interest rate sensitive assets exceed interest 
rate sensitive deposits. A positive interest rate sensitive 
gap will result in a greater portion of assets compared to 
deposits repricing with changes in interest rates within 
specified time periods. The opposite effect results from a 
negative gap, In practice, however, there may be a lag in 
repricing some products in comparison to others. A 
positive gap in the short-term, 30 days or less, in a rising 
interest rate environment sliould produce an increase in 
net interest income. The converse is true of a negative gap 
in a rising interest rate environment. 



As shown in the following table, the Bank is presently asset interest rate sensitive in the short-term, 30 days or less 
category. 

TABLE 16 - Interest Rate Sensitivity Analysis as of December 31,2002 
Repricing Periods 

0 to 30 31 to 90 91 to 180 181 to 365 Over Non-Rate 
(dnl1ar.v in thousands) Days Days Days Days 1 Year Sensitive Total 

Assets: 
Interest-bearing deposits with other 

- - 6,000 Federal funds sold . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  6,000 
Investment securities .................... 30 3,061 5,591 8,121 5,066 373 22,242 
Loans . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  234,773 32,993 27,259 16,429 155,349 (6,114) 460,689 
Cash and due from banks . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  - - - _. - 34,078 34,078 
Otherassets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  - - - - - 20,772 20,772 

banks. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 25,517 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 25,517 
- - - 

Total assets. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $266.320 $ 36,054 $ 32,850 $ 24,550 $160.415 $ 49,109 $569,298 

Liabilities and shareholders’ equity: 
Demand, noninterest-bearing . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Savings deposits . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Timedeposits .......................... 
Other liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Shareholders’ equity . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

equity ............................. 
Gap . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Cumulative gap . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Total liabilities and shareholders’ 

$ 32,162 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 115,506 $147,668 
249,250 

9,838 9,409 13,436 16,732 43,453 - 92,868 
500 - - 20,000 - 9,656 30,156 
- - - - - 49,356 49,356 

$ 55.656 $ 35.720 $ 24.297 $ 58,453 $220,654 $ 174,518 $569,298 

13,156 26,311 10,861 21,721 177,201 - 

21 0,664 334 8,553 (33,903) (60,239) (125,409) - 
21 0,664 21 0,998 21 9,551 185,648 125,409 - - 

Cumulative earning assets as a ratio of 
interest bearing liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  479% 

The Corporation measures its interest rate risk as it effects 
its market value of portfolio equity using a discounted 
cash flow analysis to determine the net present value 
(“NPV”) of its net assets (assets minus liabilities). NPV is 
calculated based on the net present value of estimated 
cash flows utilizing various assumptions. The 
Corporation’s interest rate risk is measured as the change 
to its NPV as a result of a hypothetical immediate 100 and 
200 basis point change in market interest rates. Based on 
this analysis at December 31, 2002, the Corporation 
would experience an 86 basis point decrease in its NPV as 
a percent of assets if interest rates decrease by 100 basis 
points in comparison to a flat rate scenario. Due to the 
abnormally low interest rate environment, decreases of 
200 basis points have been omitted. 
Changes in Market 
Interest Rates 
Basis Points $ Amount $ Change % Change NPV Ratio (a) 

Market Value of Portfolio Equity 

+200 $56,169 $ 6,813 13.80% 10.06% 
+loo 53,015 3,659 7.41% 9.40% 
0 49,356 - - 8.66% 

-1 00 44,847 (4,509) (9.14%) 7.80% 

(a) Calculated as the estimated NPV divided by the 
present value of total assets. 

The Bank uses income simulation models to measure its 
interest rate risk and to manage its interest rate sensitivity. 
The simulation models consider not only the impact of 
changes in interest rates on forecasted net interest income, 

33 1 ‘/o 290% 207% 132% 100% - 

but also such factors as yield curve relationships, loan 
prepayments, and deposit withdrawals. As of year-end 
2002, based on an analysis of the results from the 
simulation models, the Bank’s interest rate risk was within 
the acceptable range as established by the Bank’s Asset/ 
Liability Policies and Procedures. 

While future interest rate movements and their effect on 
Bank revenue cannot be predicted, there are no trends, 
events, or uncertainties of which the Corporation’s 
management is currently aware that will have, or are 
reasonably likely to have, a material effect on the 
Corporation’s liquidity, capital resources, or results of 
operations in the future. In future periods, should interest 
rates begin to rise, the Corporation would benefit from its 
asset interest rate sensitivity, increasing its net interest 
margins, while decreasing its revenues from the residential 
refinancing environment. Should interest rates remain at 
the present lower levels, the possibility exists that the 
number of customers desiring to refinance residential 
mortgage loans could decrease. A potential decrease in 
residential mortgage loan refinances, prior to market 
interest rates moving upward, could have a detrimental 
impact on the Corporation’s net income? due to a potential 
decrease in revenues from this counter-cyclical activity, 
without a corresponding increase in the Corporation’s net 
interest income or net interest margin. 
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Liquidity 
The, Bank’s liquidity is maiiitaiiied by managing its core 
deposits, purchasing federal furids, selling loans to the 
secondary market, and horrowirig from the Federal Home 
Loan Rank of Pittsbiirgli (the “FHLIJ”). 

I h e  Bank’s liqiiitl assets include cas11 arid cash c~quiva1mts 
as well as certain iiripledgcd investment securities. Hank 
iriaiiagerricnt has tleveloped n liquidity measure, 
iiicorporating its ability to borrow from the FIlLB to meet 
liquidity needs and goals. Periodically, ALCO reviews the 
Bank’s liqiiidity needs, incorporating the ability to borrow 
froiri tlic lH1 ,I3 and reports these findings to tlie Risk 
Mariagernerit Committee of tlic Hank’s Board of Directors. 

As preseiitetl in tlic Staterrwit of Cash Flows on page 36 
of this report, diiririg 2002, cash iisetl hy operations 
arrioinited to $2,024,000. Uiis was a $1 2,23 1,000 
rlecwase from $10,207,000 of rict incorne. This decrease 
was due primarily to the riet use of l u d s  related to loan 
sale activity, which iised $6,181,000 of net fixritlirig in 
2002. Chsh used for investirig activities amoiirited to 
$47,090,000. Investment activity provided $3,909,000 in 
cash, as tlie bulance in tlie iiivestrricnt portfolio tlecreased 
hy 15% at December 31, 2002, compared to 

m h r  31, 2001. The net fiiriding of loans and 
purchase of inclirect automobile paper used $49,934,000 
iri funding. The cost of premises7 improvernerits and ihe 
purcliase of egixiprnerit used $1 , I  I I ,000. 

Offsetting the decrease in furids from investing activities 
was an increase in fiinrls froiri the Baiik’s financiiig 
activities, which provided $86,242,000 in net cash, 
primarily tlie result of a $92,560,000 increase in deposits. 
The (:hrporation used $46,000 in repayment of its 
mortgage tlel)t. ‘The Clorporation received $3,228,000 in 
proceeds from the issiiaiice of common stock, related to 
stock option exercises and used $6,183,000 to repurchase 
common stock, pursuant to tlie Stock Repiirchase 
Program, arid $3,317,000 to pay the dividends in 2002. 
The Corporat ion’s cash and cash equivalents increased 
from December 31, 2001, to December 31, 2002, by 
$37,128,000, from $28,673,000 at Deceriher 31, 2001 to 
$65,801,000 at Decernher 31, 2002. 

Developments for 2003 
The Rank is in the process of establishing a new full 
service, branch in Newtown Sgiiare, Delaware County, the 
seventh such full service facility in the Bank’s branch 
system. The anticipated opening of the branch is in late 
2003. 

The Corporation is presently considering the acquisition 
of ari imaging dociiment processing system. Corporation 
management has deterrriiried that the incremental cost of 

converting to an imaging system, compared to upgrading 
is present processing system, in addition to bringing state- 
of-thc-art docurrierit processing to the Corporalion, would 
erdiaiicc i t s  prodiictivity by creating more efficiencies in 
the use of its humaii resources. The projected cost of the 
imaging system is $809,000, to be depreciated over the 
useful life of the respective assets. 

2001 VS. 2000 HESUJ,TS OF OPEHATIONS 
Net Income 

Net iricorrie for the year ended December 31, 2001, was 
$9,126,000, a 10% increase over net income of 
$8,261,000 for the year elided December 31, 2000. Basic 
earnings per share rose from $1.92 in 2000 to $2.11 in 
200 1. Diluted earnings per share were $1.85 for 2000 
compared to $2.05 in 2001. In 2000, the Corporation paid 
tlividcrids of $0.68 per share. In 200 1, the Corporation 
paid dividends of $0.72 per share. 

Return o r i  average assets was 1.04% for 2000 compared 
io 2.0.$% in 2001. Keturn on average equity was 17.20% 
in 2000 versus 16.95% in 2001. 

Net Interest 1nc:ome 

Average earning assets grew 4%, primarily in higher 
yielding loans, which grew hy 6%. ‘The growth in higher 
yielding earning asset; was more than offset by a 
475 basis point decline in the prime rate duriiig 2001, 
which was primarily responsible for a $1,674,000 or 5% 
decrease in i x i  terest incorne. 

Average outstanding deposits, short-tcrm horrowiilg aiid 
federal fiirids purchased also increased by 3%, with 11011- 

interest bearing checking accounts growiag by *I%, while 
other savings deposits decreased by 1 %. Average 
outstanding CDs increased by 10% arid average short- 
term borrowings increased by 14%. The cost of fuiids for 
the Bank averaged 1.60% for 2001 compared to 1.90% 
for 2000, a 30 hasis point decrease. 

Net interest income decreased 4% arid the net interest 
margin decreased from 6.33% for 2000 to 5.85% for 
2001. 

Loan Loss Provision 
The provision for loan losses amounted to $1,200,000 for 
2001 compared to $2.50,000 in 2000. During 2001 die 
Bank had write-offs totaling $1,169,000. The majority of 
this write-off was to one cornniercial borrower. In order to 
maintain an adequate reserve alter this significant charge 
off, the provision for loan loss was increased in 2001. The 
ratio of the allowance for loan losses to total outstanding 
loans was 1.23% and 1.22% at December 31, 2001 and 
2000, respectively. 
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Other Income 
Other income increased $3,638,000 or 20% in 2001 from 
2000 levels. This increase in other income was primarily a 
result of an increase in net gains on the sale of loans, up 
$3,981,000 or 321% from $1,240,000 at December 31, 
2000, compared to $5,221,000 as of December 31, 2001. 
Due primarily to lower residential mortgage interest rates 
during 2001, compared to 2000, residential mortgage 
refinancing activity increased, thereby raising the gains on 
the loan sales. Lower interest rates also provided the 
opportunity to increase service charges on checking 
account fees, which grew by $396,000 or 35% from 
$1,144,000 to $1,540,000 at December 31,2001. 

Fees for investment management and trust services 
decreased by $236,000 or 3%, from $8,973,000 for 2000 
to $8,737,000 for 2001. An overall decline in asset values 
related to a decline in the values of the stock market was 
the primary reason for this decrease. Other operating 
income increased by $526,000 or 54%, from $976,000 for 
2000 to $1,502,000 for 2001. This increase is primarily 
due the non-recurring recovery of $345,000 in 2001, as 
well as an increase in sweep fees paid on commercial and 
personal accounts maintained in off-balance sheet mutual 
funds. 

Other Expenses 
Other expenses increased by $95,000 practically even 
with 2000. Regular salaries increased $189,000 or 1%, 
from $13,859,000 for 2000 to $14,048,000 for 2001, due 
primarily to staffing reductions accomplished during the 
last quarter of 2000. Salaries -other, primarily incentive 
based, increased $993,000 or 95%, from $1,043,000 for 
2000 to $2,036,000 for 2001. The increase was directly 
related to incentive-based compensation, which is directly 
related to corporate profitability. 

Employee benefit costs increased by $970,000 or 52% 
from $1,849,000 for 2000 to $2,819,000 for 2001. Of this 
increase, $770,000 relates to increases in the cost of the 
Corporation’s pension plan, due primarily to reductions in 

the value of plan assets, as well as the lower projected 
returns on plan assets. Occupancy expenses increased 
$11,000, while furniture, fixtures and equipment expenses 
decreased $176,000 in 2001, compared to 2000. 

Advertising expenses decreased $276,000 or 22%, from 
$1,235,000 for 2000 to $959,000 for 2001, reflecting a 
reduction in the Corporation’s advertising campaign in 
2001, compared to 2000. 

The cost of professional fees decreased by $1,115,000 or 
67%, from $1,667,000 for 2000 to $552,000 for 2001. 
The primary reason for this decrease was an decrease of 
$351,000 in legal fees and a $422,000 decrease in 
professional fees associated with BMAM, due to the 
termination of BMAM’s relationship with outside business 
solicitors during 2000. 

Insurance, including the Corporation’s business coverage 
premiums and FDIC deposit insurance premiums, 
decreased by $363,000 or 69%, from $526,000 for 2000 
to $163,000 for 2001. The Corporation’s business 
insurance premiums accounted for the decrease in 2001 
compared to 2000 premium levels, due to lower premiums 
being negotiated for the 2001 insurance renewals. 

During 2000, because of changes in management, the 
remaining balance of goodwill related to the acquisition of 
BMAM was written off the Corporation’s books. This is the 
reason for the $141,000 decrease in goodwill expense in 
2001, compared to 2000. 

Other operating expenses increased $582,000 or 2% from 
2000 to 2001. During 2001, the Bank reported a recovery 
of other expenses associated with a prior problem loan of 
$134,000. Exclusive of this recovery, other operating 
expenses increased by 2% in 2001, compared to 2000. 

Income Taxes 
The Federal income tax provision for 2001 was 
$4,770,000, or a 34.3% effective rate, compared to 
$4,433,000, or a 34.0% effective rate, for 2000. 



Consolidated Balance Sheets 

A s  of Detwrher 31 

Assets 
Cash and due from Iianks 

E’c*clc.ral fluids sold . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Investment sc:c:iirities avai 

Portfolio loans 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Interest-bearing deposits with othcr la& . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

1’rernisc.s arid equipment, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Acc:riictl interest receivable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Other assets . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Liabilitien 
Deposits: 

. . . . . . . . . . . . .  
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Total deposits . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Short twm borrowings . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Other liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Total lidilities . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Commitments :mil c:ontirigencies (Note 14) 

Shareholdcre’ cquity 
Cornintin stock, par value $1, authorized, 85,000,000 shares, issued 5,541,108 shares and 5,329,675 

shares R S  of DcceIrher 31, 200% and 2001, re,sprxtivt:ly, and ouhtar 
4,322,121 skiarcs as of December 31, 2002 niirl 2001, respectively 

Paid-in capital iii (:x( . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Accumulnterl other cornipreheIisive income, net of deferred iiicornc taxes 
Retained eaniiiigs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . .  

$ 34,284 $ 28,157 
25,517 516 

6,000 - 

22,242 
438,777 
28,026 
(6.1141 

26,222 
384,293 

16,556 
(4,928’) 

460,689 

12,160 
2,118 
2,405 

863 
3,956 
1.008 

395.921 

12,478 
2,222 
2,805 

514 
2,20h 
5.782 

$677,242 $476,823 

$142,502 $110,564 
2 0 4 8 5 2 

95,869 7,5,043 
246,249 

483,620 391,059 

20,000 2 0,000 
11.015 8,457 

51 4,635 419,516 

5,541 s,330 
11,243 6,076 

41 274 
63,389 56,499 

80.214 68,779 

Lcss: Corrurioii stock in treasury, at cost - 1,184,634 and 1,007,554 shares at l)ccernler 31, 2002 and 
2001, respectively . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (1 7,607) (1 1,472) 

Total sl-iarr,l-~oltlers~ equity . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  62,607 57,307 

l‘otal liabilities arid shareholders’ eqiiity . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $577,242 $416,823 

T h  uccorripari*yirig m l e s  are an integral purt vj ’ the consoliclciled.linnncir*l stntetnents. 

*/(erlnss~fied f h  r corrip u ru tirw purposes. 



Consolidated Statements of Income 
For the years ended December 31 2002 2001* 2000* 

Net interest income: 
Interest income: 

Interestandfeesonloans . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 28,169 $ 28,601 $ 29,856 
Interest on federal funds sold . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  112 321 313 
Interest and dividends on investment securities: 

Taxable interest income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  1,027 1,211 1,512 
Tax-exempt interest incor . . . . . . . . . . . .  39 66 108 
Dividend income . . . . . .  . . .  65 112 136 

Totalinterestincome . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  29,412 30,311 31,985 
Interest expense on deposit . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  4,065 5,791 6,300 
Interest expense on federal . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  33 44 86 
Interest expense on other b 386 467 686 

Total interest expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  4,484 6,302 1,012 

Net interestincome . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  24,928 24,009 24,913 
Loanlossprovision . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  1,000 1,200 250 

Net interest income after loan loss provision . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  23,928 22,809 24,663 

Other income: 
Fees for investment management and trust services . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  8,620 8,737 8,973 
Service charges on deposit accounts . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  1,822 1,540 1,144 

1,747 1,298 1,069 
9,653 5,221 1,240 

Fees earned from famil 2,229 2,564 2,429 

- - 793 
Insurance commission 275 252 191 

1,565 1,502 916 

Totalotherincome . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  26,127 21,410 17,172 

Salaries-regular . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . .  14,149 14,048 13,859 
Salaries-other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  2,978 2,036 1,043 
Employee benefits . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  3,529 2,819 1,849 

1,914 1,964 2,140 
1,065 959 1,235 
1,028 552 1,661 

. . . . . . . . . . .  613 596 556 
341 360 391 
145 163 526 
- 165 324 

400 
Amortization of MSRs . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  1,617 580 45 

Total other expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  34,323 30,323 29,741 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  5,482 4,710 4,433 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  43 

. .  . . . .  . .  . $ 10,207 $ 9,126 $ 8,261 

Earningsper commonshare., . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 2.34 $ 2.11 $ 1.92 
Dilutedearningspercommonshare . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 2.31 $ 2.05 $ 1.85 

$ 0.76 $ 0.12 $ 0.68 
4,353,195 4,325,520 4,292,838 

65,010 12’7,090 161,408 

Adjusted weighted-average shares . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  4,418,205 4,452,610 4,454,246 

Investment advisory a . . . . . . . . . . .  216 296 951 

Other expenses: 

Occupancyexpense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  1,942 2,111 2,100 

- - 

Other operating expenses 4,602 3:910 4,006 

Income before income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  15,732 13,896 12,694 
Applicable income taxes: 

- - 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements. 

*Reclassijied for comparative purposes. 
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Consolidaled Statements of Cash Flows 
For the y e w s  cntlrd December 31 

Operating artivitics: 
Netincome . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Adjustments to rec:oiicile iiet incoinr to iirt c:ash provided by opcr 

Plovisiori for loan losses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Provisiori I'or depreciatioii wid ~rriortiza~iori . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Luaiis originatrd for wsul . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Proceeds from sale of loam . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Ne1 gain on salc of loarrs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Ne1 gain on disposal of 01 t ate owncd . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Provision for dcf(:rrt:tl iirmnie luxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
C1ianF;e in incorire taxes pay able/refundablc . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Change in acc;nic:(l iritereut receivable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
C:haiiga iri acmred interest payal)lt: . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Cliwige iri rrior~gage servici . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Nct (:as11 (nsetl) provided by opcratirig tictivilies . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
liivesting activities: 
Pirrcliases of invcstrrierit . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Proceeds from matiirilir. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Pmce,eds from sales of iriveslrrieiit seciir 
Proceeds from calls of irivestmerlt securitics . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

I'rorccds froiri rrp>iywent of note payat)lc 
Proccctls ori  (lispoxition of othcr rcal esi 

Piwchases of prcmisw ~ i i d  equipment . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Nrt I O H T I  (originalions) rcpayrricrits . . .  
Piirc:tiuse of atuomnbil(: rt:tHil irisiallirierir contracts 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Net c:ush used in invcstiiig activities 

Financing activities: 
. . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Change in dcmxrid ~ r i d  savings deposits 

Ctiange in time deposits . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Dividelids paid . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Kepaymrnt of rriongtige tiebt . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Pl~t(: t~a~t:  oI weasury stoc:k . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Nrl cash provided hy firiHricirig activities . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Chiigr  i r i  (:ash arid cash cqiiiv~lt:rits 
C ~ s l i  urd cadi equivalcr . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Cash aitil (:ash eqiiivalents at cnd of year 

. . . . . . . . . . .  

I'roccrtls froiri issiiarice of con 
Cli~rige iri   ITO OW^^ fun . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

SiipplrmeIital cash flow irihmrril~iori: 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
In tcrcst . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Tlic ticcornptiri,ying notes urc: t in inlegrwl part of tlrc conso1ia'nten't;tiunciclI stuternents. 

*fiec1a.w(tkdfh- corripura/iae purpos~s .  

(in thoueandx) 
%001* 2000* 2002 

9; 10,207 $ !),126 $ 8,261 

1,000 
1,865 

(56h,757) 
560,576 

(9,653) 

(230) 

(541) 

- 

2,629 
104 

(1,750) 
52h 

1,200 250 
1,712 1,024 

:333,280) (80,021) 
:330,10:3 72,978 

(14) 
(02)  (490) 

(:128) (299) 

78 (43) 
(1,833) (373) 
3,073 (2.032) 

(5J21) (1,241) 
- 

758 (560) 

(2,024) 5,287 (2,560) 

(14,431) (18,793) (445) 
3,004 5,365 3,509 

336 588 252 
15,000 14,000 - 

46 204 - 

I 14 
(49,723) (:30,484) 7,621 

- 

(all) (1,544) (lS,S.56) 

(47,090) (38,220) (6,600) 

72,334 (1,648) 24,216 
20,22r, 5,741 (8,318) 
(3,317) (3,115) (2,922) 

-76 3,228 1,562 

(6,183) (2,259) (1,677) 

86.242 20,239 1.538 

(1,111) ( 1 3 q  (2,004) 

(37) (46) (42) 

- zo,oon (io,ooo) 

37,128 (12,700) (-7,840) 
28,673 41,373 49,213 

4; 65.801 $ 28.673 $ 41,373 



Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity 
(in thousands, except for shares of common stock) 

Shares of Accumulated 
Common Other 

Stock Common Paid-in Retained Com rehensive Treasury 
For the years ended December 31,2002,2001 and 2000 issued Stock Capital Earnings Ecome Stock 

Netincome . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  8,261 

Accumulated other comprehensive income, net of income taxes of 

Balance, December 31,1999 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  5,179,608 $5,180 $ 4,467 $45,149 $(389) $ (7,688) 

Dividends declared, $0.68 per share . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (2,922) 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  347 
xercise . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  196 

Purchase of treasury stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (1,677) 
Retirement of treasury stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Commonstockissued . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

81 

5,203,719 $5,204 $ 4,604 $50,488 $ (42) $ (9,284) 
9,126 

(3,115) 

316 

For the years ended December 31, 2002 2001 2000 

Netincome . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $10,207 $9,126 $8,261 
Other comprehensive income: 

Unrealized holding gains (losses) arising during the period . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . .  (67) 479 526 

Deferred income tax benefit (expense) on unrealized holding gains (losses) arising during the period . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  19 (163) (179) 
Change in unfunded pension liability, net of tax . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (185) - - 

I Comprehensive net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 9,974 $9,442 $8.608 
i 
I The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements. 

Balance, December 31,2000 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Netincome . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Dividends declared, $0.72 per share . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Accumulated other comprehensive income, net of income taxes of 

$163,000 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

(21,083) (21) (415) 
45.194 45 356 

707 
(2,259) 

71 

Tax benefit from gains on stock option exercise . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Purchase of treasury stock . . . .  . .  . .  . . . .  
Retirement of treasury stock (3,609) (4) (67) . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Common stock issued 129.565 130 1.432 

Balance, Decembe . . , . 5,329,675 $5,330 $ 6,676 $56,499 $ 274 $(I 1,472) 
Net income . . . . .  . . . .  10,207 
Dividends declare . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (3,317) 
Accumulated other comprehensive income, net of income taxes of 

Tax benefit from gains on stock option exercise . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  1,597 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  ($119,000) (233) 

Purchase of treasury stock . . . .  
Retirement of treasury st (2,456) ( 2 )  (45) 

Balance, December 31,2002 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  5,541,108 $5,541 $11,243 $63,389 $ 41 $(17,607) 

(6,183) 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  48 

Common stock issued . . 213.889 213 3.015 
~ ~ ~ 

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 
(in thousands) 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

1. Banin of Presentation: 
Tlie consolidated financial statements include the 
nccounts of Bryn Mawr Bank Chrporuiion (the 
(‘Corl~oratioIi’’), Tlie B r y  M a w  Trust Company (die 
“Rank”), Insurance Counsellors of Bryn Mawr, lnc. 
( “TC:BM11)7 Bryn M a w  Sctilement Services, Inc. (“SMSS”) 
Bryn Mawr Brokerage Company, Inc. (“B M Brok~rage~~)  , 
Joseph W. Roskos & Co.  (“,I WR 8c Co”) and Bryn Mawr 
Finance, Inc. (“BMF7*I). For all years presented, all 
adjusting entries required lor the fair presentation o l  the 
financial statements were made. All such adjiistrrients 
were of a normal recurring nature. All significant 
intercompany transactions and iiccoii tits have hccn 
eliminated upon consolidation. 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: 
The accounting policies of the Corporation conform to 

p e d  Accounting Principles (“CAAP77) and 
tices of tlic hankirig industry. The 

significant accounting policies are as follows: 

Cash and cash eqiiivalents: 
Cas11 arid cash eyuivalents iricludc cash and due from 
hanks, federal funds sold, arid interest-hearing deposits 
with other hanks with original maturities of tllrcc month  
or less. Cash halaiices rcscrved to rnect regiilatory 
requirements of the Federal Reserve Board amountcd to 
$1 1,0:33,000 arid $9,994,000 at T I  rxher 31 2002 and 
2001, respectively. 

I nves trnent sccuri ties: 
Management categcirized all of its irivestrnent securihx as 
available for sale as p:vt ol  its asset/lialility managcment 
strategy since they may be sold iii response to changes in 
interest rates, prepayments, and similar lactors. 
Investments in this classification are reported at tlie 
r:urre,nt market value with net unrealized gairis or losses, 
net of the applicable dclerred tax elect, being added to or 
dcducted from the (hrporation’s total shareholders’ equity 
on the I-~alnl-ice sheet. As of December 31, 2002, 
shareholders’ equity was increased by $226,000 due to 
unrealized gairis (net of $122,000 in deferred income 
taxes) of $348,000 in the investment securities portfolio. 
As of December 31, 2002, shareholders’ equity was 
increased by $274,000 diie to unrealized gairis (net of 
$141,000 in deferred income taxes) of $415,000 in the 
investment securities portfolio. 

Loans: 
Loam are generally reported at principal amount 
outstanding, net of unearned income. Loans held for sale 

or seciiritization are valued on an aggregate basis at the 
lower of carrying arnount or fair value. 

Interest iricorne on loans performing satisfactorily is 
rccnpized 011 the acc~uitl method ol accnimhig. Nnn- 
performing loans are loans on wllicli scheduled principal 
and/or iritircst is past duc 90 days or more or loans less dim 
I30 days past due which me deerried to be problem louis by 
rniuiagement. AU non-perfo~ming loiuis, except (:omumer 
loans, ure placed on riomaccnial status, mid m y  outstmiding 
interest receivable at the time the lom is deemed non- 
performing is deducted from interest income. Consumer loan 
principal arid interest balances deemed iincollectable are 
charged off on a tirriely hasis against tlie loxi loss reserve. 
~ 1 - w  klimge-nff policy for all loans, inclucluig non-performing 
and impaired Inaris, considers such factors as ihe type ard 
size of tlic loan, tlie quality of tlic collateral, mid historical 
creditworthiness of the borrower, 

A s  a pnrt of its iiiternal loan review process, management, 
when considering making a loan mi impaired loan, 
considers a nuinher of lactors, such as a horrowcr’s 
ciirrent financial strength, the vduc of related collateral 
and the itbility to continue to rncct the original contractual 
terms ol a loan. Major risk clussilications, used to 
aggregate loans include hoth credit risk or tlie risk of 
failiire to repay a loan and concentration risk. A loan is 
not (:onsidered irnpaired if there is mcrely aii insignificant 
delay or shortfall in the amounts of payments. hri 
iiisigiificant tielay O K  shortfall is a temporary delay in die 
payment process of a loan. However, iinder tliesc: 
circumstances, the Bank expects to collect all animnts 
due, incliidirig interest accrucd a t  the coritractiial interest 
rate for the period of the delay. 

When a borrower is deemed to be unable to meet the 
original terms of a loan, tlic loan is considered iiripaired. 
While all impaired loans are not riecessarily considered 
non-performing loans, if a loan is delintpent lor 90 days 
or more, it is considered both a non-performing and 
impaired loan. All of the Coq~oration’s impaired loans, 
which amounted to $209,000 and $21,000 at 
December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively, were put on ii 
noli-accrual basis aid any outstanding accrued interest 
receivable on such loans, at the time they were put mi a 
non-accrual status, was reversed lrom income. 

Impaired loans are required to be measured based upon 
the present value of expected future cash flows, discounted 
at  the loan’s initial effective interest rate, at the loan’s 
market price or fair value of the collateral, if the loan is 
collateral dependent. As oi“ Decerrher 31, 2002 and 2001, 
no impaired loans were measured using the present value 
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of expected future cash flows or at the loan’s market price. 
Impaired loans measured by the fair value of the loan’s 
collateral amounted to $209,000 arid $21,000, 
respectively. 

If the loan valuation is less than the recorded value of the 
loan, an impairment reserve is established for the 
difference. The impairment reserve is established by an 
allocation of the reserve for loan losses depending on the 
adequacy of the reserve for loan losses. All impairment 
reserves established in either 2002 or 2001 were allocated 
from the existing reserve for loan losses. As of 
December 31, 2002 there was $209,000 of impaired loans 
for which there is no related allowance for loan losses. 
There was no related allowance for loan loss on impaired 
loans, which totaled $21,000 as of December 31, 2001. 
Average impaired loans during both 2002 and 2001 
amounted to $90,000 and $499,000, respectively. 

When a loan is classified as impaired, it is put on non- 
accrual status arid any income subsequently collected is 
credited to the Outstanding principal balance. Therefore, no 
interest income was reported on outstanding loans while 
considered impaired in either 2002 or 2001, Loans may be 
removed from impaired status and returned to accrual 
status when all principal and interest amounts contractually 
due are reasonably assured of repayment within an 
acceptable period of time and there is a sustained period of 
repayment performance by the borrower, with a minimum 
repayment of at least six months, in accordance with the 
contractual terms of interest and principal. Subsequent ’ 

income recognition would be recorded under the existing 
terms of the loan. Based on the above criteria, no loan 
balances were removed from impaired status and returned 
to accrual status during 2002, compared to $25,000 in loan 
balances considered impaired being removed from impaired 
status during 2001. 

Smaller balance, homogeneous loans, exclusively 
consumer loans, when included in non-performing loans, 
for practical consideration, are not put on a non-accrual 
status nor is the current accrued interest receivable 
reversed from income. Once deemed uncollectable, the 
outstanding loan is charged off through the loan loss 
reserve, on a timely basis. 

Loan loss provision: 
The loan loss provision charged to operating expenses is 
driven by a systematic formula and those factors which, in 
managemeiit’s judgement, deserve current recognition in 
estimating loan losses including the continuing evaluation 
of the loan portfolio and the Bank’s past loan loss 
experience. The allowance for loan losses is an amount 
that management believes will be adequate to absorb 
losses inherent in existing loans. 

Other real estate owned: 
Other real estate owned (“OREO1’) consists of properties 
acquired by foreclosure. These assets are carried at the 
lower of cost or estimated fair value at the time the loan is 
foreclosed less estimated cost to sell. The amounts 
recoverable from ORE0 could differ materially from the 
amounts used in arriving at the net carrying value of the 
assets because of future market factors beyond the control 
of the Bank. Costs to improve the property are capitalized, 
whereas costs of holding the property are charged to 
expense. 

Deferred loan fees: 
The Bank defers all loan fees and related direct loan 
origination costs. Deferred loan fees and costs are 
capitalized arid amortized as a yield adjustment over the 
life of the loan using the interest method. 

Premises and equipment: 
Premises and equipment are stated at cost, less 
accumulated depreciation. The provision for depreciation 
is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated 
useful lives, as follows: premises-10 to 50 years, and 
equipment-3 to 20 years. Leasehold improvements are 
aniortized over the shorter of the estimated useful life or 
the term of the lease. 

Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense; major 
renewals and betterments are capitalized. Gains and losses 
on dispositions are reflected in current operations. 

Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation: 
The Corporation has elected to use the intrinsic value 
method of accounting for stock-based employee 
compensation. Following is a summary presentation for 
the previous 5-year period of net income and basic and 
diluted earnings per share, as reported, the stock-based 
employee compensation cost, net of related tax effects, 
that would have been included in the determination of net 
income, if the fair value method of accounting for stock- 
based employee compensation had been applied to all 
awards and proforma net income and basic and diluted 
earnings per share, had the fair value method of 
accounting for stock-based employee compensation been 
applied to all awards. 

2002 2001 2000 199‘1 1998 

Net income-as reported . . .  $10,207 $9,126 $8,261 $7,961 $6,857 
Stock-based compensation 

cost, net of related 
taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  158 140 224 325 484 

Net income-proforma . . . . .  $10,049 $8,986 $8,037 $7,636 $6,373 
Basic earnings per share- 

asreported . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 2.34 $ 2.11 $ 1.92 $ 1.83 $ 1.58 
Diluted earnings per share- 

Basic earnings per share- 
asreported . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 2.31 $ 2.05 $ 1.85 $ 1.75 $ 1.51 

proforma..  . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 2.31 $ 2.08 $ 1.87 $ 1.76 $ 1.47 
Diluted earnings per share- 

proforma..  . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 2.27 $ 2.02 $ 1.80 $ 1.68 $ 1.40 



Tricorne taxes: 

The (hrporatiori filcs R consolidated Federal imoine tax 
retiirri with its subsjdiaries. Certain iteras of income a i d  
expe~isc (primarily pensioii imil post retircrncnt heiiefils, 
provision for loan loss arid other reserves) are reported in 
different periods for tax purposes. Deferred taxes are 
1)rovidcd on such trmporiiry ciirf‘ereiices existing betwccn 
financial and iiic:onic tax reporting, siihject to the tieferrcd 
tax asset renliaatioii critcria recpired under Staternent of 
Financial h(:c:c~unt ing Standnrds No. 1 O!), “ Accoiinting for 
Iricornc Taxes” (“SFAS No. 109”). 

Trust income: 
I hc triist income is recognixed oii the cash hasis of 
nccountiiig. Ilepoi-ting such incol-ne on it cash basis does 
iiot materially affect iiet income:. 

Goodwill: 
of cost over fair market value of riet assets 

acqiiired through the purchase rncthod of accounting 
(Chodwill) was I-wing arnoi-tized on a straight-line hasis 
over tlie period of tlic cxpe:rted benefit, wliicli ranges from 
10 to 20 years. IJndcr tlie provisions of Statement of 
Firiaiicial Accouiiting standard No. 142 “‘Goodwill aiid 
Other Intangihle Assetsn (“SFAS No. 142”), in years 
siihseyuerit 10 2001, gciodwill will 110 longer be amortized 
hiit rather, will be periodically mcastired for impairment 
and if ariy expected benefit from an acquisition becomes 
impaired, tlie respective amount of iiripaired goodwill will 
he charged-off in the period of impairrnent. 

Mortgage Servicing Rightn: 
Mortgage servicing riglits (“‘MMSRs”) arc recorded when 
residential mortgage loan are sold with servicing relained 
by the Bank. MSRs are amortized over the anticipated life 
of tlie respective loans being serviced. In an effort to avoid 
any potential impairment of the MSHs, amortization is 
accelerated as tlic remaining lives of the respective loans 
shorten. W h r i  loans arc paid off, any nnamoi-tized 
balances of tlie respective MSRs are written off against 
current Corporation iiet income. Perioctically, aii 
independent valuation of tlie MSR balances or1 tlic Bank’s 
hooks is made to determine if ariy impairrrierit of the 
MSRs exists. Sliould any impairinent of the MSHs exist, 
the balance of the MSRs would be written dowri by the 
amount of the iiqnirment. 

Recently issued accuiinting standards: 
I n  April 2002, h c  Finanr:ial Accounting Standards Board 
(“the P’ASB”) issucd Staterneiit or Financial Accoiiiitiiig 
Standard No. 145, Rescission of FASB Statements No. 4,  
44 ,  and 64, Amendment of FASR Statement No. 13, and 
‘I’eclinical Corrections as of April 2002. SFAS No. 145 
resciiitis SP’AS No. 4, which reqiiired all gairis arid losses 

r 1  

from extinguishment of debt to be aggregated and, if 
material, clussi ried as it11 cxtraordinary item, rict of the 
rclated iiicornc tax oii the inc:ornc statement. l-’lie provision 
of SFAS No. 145 related to SFAS No. 4 arc applicabk in 
fiscal years heginning after May 1 S, 200% with early 
application ei1c:ouraged. The provisions of SFAS No. 145 
related to SFAS No. 1 3  are effective for transactioiis 
occiirring after Mny 15, 2002, with early application 
eiicouragetl. All otlirr provisioiis of SFAS No. 145 are 
effectivc for firiancial stateinelits issiied 011 or after May 
15, 2002, with early application encoiiraged. SFAS No. 
145 will 1101 liave a material irnpact oil the EinantiaI 
condition or results of operations of tlie Corporation. 

In June 2002, the FASB Accounting Standard No. 146, 
“Accoiiiitirig for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal 
Activities” (“SFAS No 146”). SFAS No. 146 addresses 
financial accounting arid reportiiig for costs associated 
with exit or disposal related activities. Those costs iriclude 
tcrmiiiatiori benefits provided to current employees that 
nrc involuntarily teriniiiated, tlie cost to terrninate a 
contract that is not a cnpital lease and costs to consolidate 
facilities or relocate ernployees. SP’AS No. 146 nullifies 
Eme,rging Issues Task Force (“El’YF’7) Issue No. 94-3. 
“1 iahility Hccognitiori for Certain Employee ‘I’crmination 
Benefits arid Other Cost to Exit an Activity (including 

Llrider Issue 94-3, a liability for iiii  exit cost as defined in 
Issue 134-3 was recognized nt the date of an entity’s 
corriIriitrncnt to an cxit plan. SPAS No. 146 requires that a 
liability for h e  cost associated with a11 exit or disposal 
activity be recognized and measured initially at fair value 
only when the liability i s  incurred. The provisions of SFAS 
No. 146 shall he effective for exit and tlisposal activities 
initiated after Decernber 31, 200‘2. Early application is 
encom*aged. SFAS No. 146 will riot have a material 
impact 011 tlie financial condition or results of operatioris 
of the Corporation. 

In 0r:toher 2002, the 1ASR iw ied  Statement o i  Finant:ial 
Accounting Standard No. 147 “Acquisition of Certain 
linancial Iiistitiitioiis aii amendmerit of FASB Statements 
No. 72 arid 144 and FASB Interpretation No. 9” (“SFAS 
No. 1477’). Except for transactions hctween two or more 
miitual enterprises, SP’AS No. 147 removes acquisitions of 
financial institutions from the scope of both Statement of 
Finaricial Accounting Standard No. 7 2  and Statement of 
FASB hiterprctation No. 9 anti requires that those 
transactions €)e accounte,tl for in accordance with 
Statement of Finaricial Accoiinting Stantlards No. 142 
“Busiriess Combinations" and Stitternent of Financial 
hccouritirig Staiidarcis No. 142 (““Goodwill urld Other 
hitnngible Assets”). I n  addition, SFAS No. 147 amends 
Statement of Financial Accounting Staiidard No. 144 
“Awounting for tlie linp~irment of Long-Lived Assets” to 

c .  taiii Cost lnciirred in a Restructuring)” ( “Issuc 94-3”). 



include in its scope long-term customer-relationship 
intangible assets. The provisions for SFAS No. 147 shall 
be effective for transactions incurred on or after 
October 1, 2002. SFAS No. 147 will not have a materia1 
impact on the financial condition or results of operations 
of the Corporation. 

In December 2002, the FASB issued Statement of 
Financial Accounting Standard No. 148 “Accounting for 
Stock-Based Compensation-Transition and Disclosure-an 
amendment of FASB Statement No. 123” (“SFAS 
No. 148”). SFAS No. 148 amends Statement of Financial 
Accounting Standard No. 123 “Accounting for Stock- 
Based Compensation’7, to provide alternative methods of 
accounting for stock-based employee compensation. In 
addition, SFAS No. 148 amends the disclosure 
requirements of SFAS No. 123 to require prominent 
disclosures in both annual and interim financial 
statements about the method of accounting for stock- 
based employee compensation and the effect of the 
method used on reported results. The transition guidance 
and annual disclosure provisions of SFAS No. 148 are 
effective for fiscal years endmg after December 15, 2002, 
with earlier application permitted in certain 
circumstances. The Corporation has elected to continue 
using the intrinsic value method of accounting for stock- 
based employee compensation, therefore the adoption of 
SFAS No. 148 will not have a material impact on the 
financial condition or results of operations of the 
Corporation. 

In November 2002, the FASB issued FASB interpretation 
No. 45 (FIN 45), Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure 
Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect 
Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others. This interpretation 
expands the disclosures to be made by a guarantor in its 
financial statements about its obligations under certain 
guarantees and requires the guarantor to recognize a 
liability for the fair value of an obligation assumed under 
a guarantee. FIN 45 clarifies the requirements of 
Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. 5, 
Accounting for Contingencies, relating to guarantees. In 
general, FIN 45 applies to contracts or indemnification 
agreements that contingently require the guarantor to 
make payments to the guaranteed party based on changes 
in an underlying that is related to an asset, liability, or 
equity security of the guaranteed party. 

Certain guarantee contracts are excluded from both the 
disclosure and recognition requirements of this 
interpretation, including, among others, guarantees 
relating to employee compensation, residual value 
guarantees under capital lease arrangements, commercial 
letters of credit, loan commitments, subordinated interests 
in an SPE, and guarantees of a company’s own future 

performance. Other guarantees are subject to the 
disclosure requirements of FIN 45 but not to the 
recognition provisions and include, among others, a 
guarantee accounted for as a derivative instrument under 
Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. 133, a 
parent’s guarantee of debt owed to a third party by its 
subsidiary or vice versa, and a guarantee which is based 
on performance not price. The disclosure requirements of 
FIN 45 are effective for the Corporation as of 
December 31, 2002, and require disclosure of the nature 
of the guarantee, the maximum potential amount of future 
payments that the guarantor could be required to make 
under the guarantee, and the current amount of the 
liability, if any, for the guarantor’s obligations under the 
guarantee. 

The recognition requirements of FIN 45 are to be applied 
prospectively to guarantees issued or mohfied after 
December 31,2002. The Corporation does not expect the 
requirements of FIN 45 to have a material impact on 
results of operations, or financial position. 

In January 2003, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation 
No. 46 (FIN 46), Consolidation of Variable Interest 
Entities. The objective of this interpretation is to provide 
guidance on how to identify a variable interest entity 
(“VIE”) and determine when the assets, liabilities, non- 
controlling interests, and results of operations of a VIE 
need to be included in a company’s consolidated financial 
statements. A company that holds variable interests in an 
entity will need to consolidate the entity if the company7s 
interest in the VIE is such that the company will absorb a 
majority of the VIE’S expected losses and/or receive a 
majority of the entity’s expected residual returns, if they 
occur. FIN 46 also requires additional disclosures by 
primary beneficiaries and other significant variable 
interest holders. The provisions of this interpretation 
became effective upon issuance. The Corporation does not 
expect the requirements of FIN 46 to have a material 
impact on results of operations, or financial position. 

3. Investment Securities 
The amortized cost and estimated market value of 
investments, all of which were classified as available for 
sale, are as follows: 

As of December 31, 2002: 
Gross Gross Estimated 

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Market 
(in thousands) Cost Gains Losses Value 
Obligations of the US. 

Government and 
agencies . . . . . . . , . . . . . $19,499 $321 $ - $19,820 

State & political 
subdivisions . . . . . , . . . . . 440 12 - 452 

Other securities . . . . . . . . . 1,955 15 - 1,970 

Tota l . .  . . . . . . .  . _ .  . . . $21,894 $348 $ - $22,242 



(in thrrunnrids) 

Obligations of the US.  
Government and 
agencies . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

State i3 political 
subdivisions . . . . . . . . . . .  

Other securities . . . . . . . . .  
Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

$22,502 $375 $- $22,877 

1,386 22 - 1,408 
1.919 18 I 1,937 

$25,807 $415 & $26,222 

At 
$ 1  
trust deposits, arid other p ~ p s e s .  

Tlic amortized cost and estirriated rriarkct value of 
irivcstiiieiit securities at Decernher 3 1 , 2002, by 
(:ontractid Inatiirity, are sliowri below. Lxpected 
rnatiirities will differ from coritracti~al matiirities hecaiise 
borrowers iriay have the riglit to call or prcpay obligations 
with or without call or pItpayrrient penalties 

riher 3 1 ,  2002, securities liavirig H book valiie ol  
000 were pledged :IS col1ater:tl for public hmds, 

20112 

Arriortizcd Markct 
CWt Valrrr 

Estimalrrl 

Due in one year or le$ 
Due after one year thr 
Due after five years th 
Due after ten years . 

. . .  $ 1,000 $ 1,016 

Total . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $21,894 $22,242 

There wcre r i o  sales of deLt sec*uritics diiring 2001, 2000 
or 1990. 

4. Loans: 
Loans oritstanding at Dcrrmher 31 are tletailcd hy 
category RS follows: 

(in thuuxnnd8) 

Real estate loans: 
20112 2001 

Permanent 
commercial mortaaae loans . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $103,878 $ 68,194 _ -  
second mortgage loans .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  35,825 22,058 
mortgage loans available for sale . . . . . .  28,026 16,556 
mortgage loans . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . .  76,800 70,937 

Construction loans . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . .  27,604 20,493 
Commercial and indu s . . . . . . . .  . . . . .  170,527 167,452 
Loans to individuals for household, family, er 

consumer expenditures ......................... 24,537 35,521 

Subtotal ........................ . . . . .  467,197 401,211 
Less: Allowance for loan losses . . . . . . . .  . . . . .  (6,113) (4,928) 

Net deferred loan fees ...................... (394) (343) 

Loans, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  .$460,690 $395,940 

Unadvanced loan funds . . . . .  $174,256 $138,805 

Loans with predetermine .................... 173,832 197,558 
Loans with adjustable or floating rates . . . . . . .  292,971 203,291 

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . .  $466,803 $400,849 

All loitns past due 90 days or more, except CoiiSurner 
h i i s ,  are placcd 011 rioiiaccriid stat l i s .  Noripcrforrriirig 
loans amouritcd to $45,000 arid $43,000 at D 
200% arid 2001 , respcctively. Forgone iiiicrest oii 

nonaccrid loans was $ 3  I ,OOO,  $84,000, and $29,000 in 

2002, 2001, and 2000, respc(Cve1y. l'hcre werc foiir 
irripaired loan at Derernher 3 1 . 2002, amomiting to 
$209,000. 

5. Allowanrc. For Loan Lossrn: 

The surnmary of tlie changes in the: allowance for loan 
losses is as follows: 
(in NinuuanclaJ 2ou2 5001 2000 

Balance, January 1 ......................... $4,928 $4,320 $4,400 
Charge-offs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (68) (1,169) (399) 
Recoveries . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  254 577 69 

Net recoveries / (charge-offs) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  186 (592) (330) 
Loan loss provision . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . .  1,000 1,200 250 

Balance, December31 ...................... $6,114 $4,928 $4,320 

6. Prcmises And Equipment: 
A siirrimary of jmmiises arid equipll~ent at 1 ) c c e r n l ~ ~  3.1 is 
as follows: 
(in thuiinandn) 2002 2001 

$ 2,973 $ 2,973 
13,301 12,688 
13,627 13,058 

Leasehold improvements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  814 1,027 
30,715 29,746 

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  , . $12,160 $12,478 

Depreciation expense for tlie years eridcd December 31 , 
2002, 2001 a n d  2000 arriountetl to $1,)432,000, 
$1,478,000 a r i d  $1,489,000, 1wper:tively. Fntiire 
miiiirnum rent cominitrrieots iirider various operatirig 
lcases are as follows: 

. . . . . . . . .  

Less accumulated depreciation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  18,555 17,268 

002, the (.:orporatioii had 
hnrrowings oiitstanding of $5 13,256. T h e  borrowiiigs BR 

collateralized by H property w i h  a hook valw of 
$1,557,630. Tlir weighted average intwest mtc or1 the 
borrowings was 8.50%) in 2002 and 2001, respectively. 

7 .  Deposits: 
Iollowing is B siiinmary of deposits as of' I)ecerribcr 3 1 ,  
(in tRoununds) 2002 an0 1 

Regular Savings . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . .  $ 45,129 $ 39,994 
NOW Accounts . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . .  130,481 111,589 
Market rate accounts . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . .  73,639 53,269 
Time deposits (less than $100,000) . . . . . . . . .  84,540 52,278 
Time deposits, $100,000 or more . . . . . . . . . . .  8,329 23,365 
Total interest-bearing deposits . . . . . . . . . . . . .  342,118 280,495 
Non-interest-bearing deposits . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  141,502 1 1  0,564 
Total deposits . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $483,620 $391,059 

1 hr aggregatr amoiiiit of rleposit overhnf'ts iiicluclrd as 
hians as ol 1)ecembcr 3 1 , 200% aiitl 2001 were $5,>;3 1 1,000 
und $1,104,000, respwtively. 

r l  



Maturity of certificates of deposit: 

(in thousands) 
Maturing during: 
2003 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
2004 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
2005 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
2006 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
2007 and thereafter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. .  

. .  

s100,000 
or more 

$8,329 
- 
- 

Less than 
$100,000 

$41,194 
18,624 
23,550 

1,080 
92 

Total.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $8,329 $84,540 

8. Short Term Borrowings: 
The Bank had outstanding short term borrowings from 
the Federal Home Loan Bank of Pittsburgh of 
$20,000,000 as of December 31, 2002 with an interest 
rate of 1.94%, which was repaid in January 2003. The 
Bank had outstanding borrowings from the Federal Home 
Loan Bank of Pittsburgh of $20,000,000 as of December 
31, 2001, with an interest rate of 3.86%. 

9. Disclosure About Fair Value Of Financial 
Instruments: 

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 107, 
“Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Iiistruments’7 
(“SFAS No. 107?>), requires disclosure of the fair value 
information about financial instruments, whether or not 
recognized in the balance sheet, for which it is practicable 
to estimate such value. In cases where quoted market 
prices are not available, fair values are based on estimates 
using present value or other market value techniques. 
Those techniques are significantly affected by the 
assumptions used, including the discount rate and 
estimates of future cash flows. In that regard the derived 
fair value estimates cannot be substantiated by 
comparison to independent markets and, in many cases, 
could not be realized in immediate settlement of the 
instrument. SFAS No. 107 excludes certain financial 
instruments and all non-financial instruments from its 
disclosure requirements. Accordingly, the aggregate fair 
value amounts presented do not represent the underlying 
value of the Corporation. 

The following methods and assumptions were used to 
estimate the fair value of each class of financial 
instruments for which it is practicable to estimate that 
value: 

Cash and cash equivalents: 
The carrying amounts reported in the balance sheet for 
cash and cash equivalents approximate their fair values. 

Investment securities: 
Estimated fair values for investment securities are based 
on quoted market price, where available. 

Loans: 

For variable rate loans that reprice frequently and which 
have no significant change in credit risk, estimated fair 
values are based on carrying values. Fair values of certain 
mortgage loans and consumer loans are estimated using 
discounted cash flow analyses, using interest rates 
currently being offered for loans with similar terms to 
borrowers of similar credit quality. The estimated fair 
value of nonperforming loans is based on discounted 
estimated cash flows as determined by the internal loan 
review of the Bank or the appraised market value of the 
underlying collateral, as determined by independent third 
party appraisers. 

Deposits: 
The estimated fair values disclosed for noninterest- 
bearing demand deposits, NOW accounts, and Market 
Rate accounts are, by definition, equal to the amounts 
payable on demand at the reporting date (i.e.? their 
carrying amounts). Fair values for certificates of deposit 
are estimated using a discounted cash flow calculation 
that applies interest rates currently being offered on 
certificates to a schedule of expected monthly maturities 
on the certificate of deposit. SFAS No. 107 defines the fair 
value of demand deposits as the amount payable on 
demand and prohibits adjusting estimated fair value from 
any value derived from retaining those deposits for an 
expected future period of time. 

Short Term Borrowings: 
Due to the short term nature of the maturities the carrying 
amount of the borrowings approximates the fair value. 

Other liabilities: 
Estimated fair values of long term mortgages, 
collateralized by one property included in premises and 
equipment, are based on discounted cash flow analyses, 
using interest rates currently being offered for similar 
types of loans and amortizing the loan under existing 
amortization tables for each loan. 

Off-balance sheet instruments: 
Estimated fair values of the Corporation’s off-balance 
sheet instruments (standby letters of credit and loan 
commitments) are based on fees and rates currently 
charged to enter into similar loan agreements, taking into 
account the remaining terms of the agreements and the 
counterparties’ credit standing. Since fees and rates 
charged for off-balance sheet items are at market levels 
when set, there is no material difference between the 
stated amount and estimated fair values of off-balance 
sheet instruments. The carrying amount and estimated 
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fair valiie of the C o q m ~ ~ t i o n ’ s  financial instrurncnts at 
Decerriber :11 are HS follows: 

2002 2001 
( :aGng Bdniated Ciirryirig Estmrittrd 

(in Ihou#mdu) Amurinl Fair Value Amount Firii Value 

Financial assets: 
Cash and due from 

banks. . . . . . . . .  $ 34,284 $ 34,284 $ 28,157 $ 28,157 
Interest-bearing 

deposits with 
other banks . . . .  

Federal funds 
sold . . . . . . . . . . .  

Investment 
securities . . . . . .  

Mortgage servicing 
rights . . . . . . . . .  

Net loans . . . . . . . .  
Total financial 

assets . . . . . . .  
Financial liabilities: 

Deposits . . . . . . . . .  
Short term 

borrowings . . . . .  
Other liabilities . . .  

Total financial 
liabilities . . . . .  

Off-balance sheet 
instruments . . . . . .  

25,517 25,517 51 6 516 

6,000 6,000 - - 

22,242 22,242 26,222 26,222 

3,956 4,153 2,206 2,316 
460,688 462,046 395,921 395,719 

8552.687 $554.242 $453,022 $452,930 

$483,620 $485,011 $391,059 $391,543 

20,000 20,080 20,000 20,000 
1,445 1,445 578 578 

$505,065 $506,536 $41 1,637 $412,121 

$183,442 $183,442 $148,442 $148,442 

In. Applicable Federal Income Taxes: 
The components of thP net dcferretl tax asset as of 
Decernher 31 are its follows: 
(in thuuhwntlx) 

Deferred tax assets: 
Loan loss reserve . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Pension and other postretirement benefits . . I . . 
Otherreserves . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Deferred tax liabilities: 
Depreciation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Originated mortgage servicing rights . . . . . . . . . .  
Unrealized depreciation on investment 

securities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Total net deferred tax assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

2002 ‘2001 

$1,792 $1,338 
413 221 
286 174 

2,491 1,733 

(221) (302) 
(1,385) (772) 

(122) (145) 
$ 763 $ 514 

No vuluation allowiinre was recordd as of 1)rrrmher 3 1, 
2002 and 2001. 

l‘hc provisioris lor fetleral i n r o n ~  taxes consist of thc 
f ()Ilowing: 

(it1 tlinnsantls) 5002 ‘1001 2000 

Currently payable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $5,712 $4,862 $4,923 

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $5,482 $4,770 $4,433 
Deferred . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (230) (92) (490) 

hpplicahle federal income taxes differed from the ainoiint 
derived by applying the statiitory fedcral tax rate to 
income as follows: 
(in thriuunrids) 2002 2001 2000 

Computed 

Benefit reductions in taxes resulting 
Tax expense 63 stated rate . . . . . . . .  $5,506 $4,764 $4,316 

from tax-exempt income . . . . . . . . . .  (72) (78) (121) 
Goodwill . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  140 57 110 
Other, net . . . . . . . .  
Actual tax expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $5,482 $4,770 $4,433 

11. Pension and Other Postrctirernent Benefits 

1 he Corporation sponsors two p e r i s h  plans and a 
postretirerncnt henefit plan for certain of its employees. 

The following tables provide a reconciliation of the 
chmges in the  plans’ benefits obligation and fair value of 
assets over the two-year period ending December 31 
2002, a n d  a statcnient of fundeti status as of December 31 
of both years: 

(92) 27 128 . . . . . . . . . . .  

r ,  

I’ostretiremrrit 
I’cnsion Berirfits Hrrirfits 

2002 2001 2002 2001 ---- (Dollnru in tliousrinil~) 

Reconciliation of Benefit Obligation and Plan Assets 

Change in benefit 
obligation 
Benefit obligation at 

$19,661 $16,301 $2,365 $1,444 
808 774 27 23 

Interest cost . . .  1,355 1,279 171 166 
111 59 17 7 

Actuarial (gain) 10s 753 1,813 184 921 
Benefits paid . . . .  (798) (565) (203) (196) 
Benefit obligation at 

December 31 . . .  $21,890 $19,661 $2,561 $2,365 
Chanse in plan assets 

Fair value of plan assets 

Actual return on plan 

Employer 
contribution . . . . . . . . .  129 24 186 190 

Plan participants’ 
contribution . . . . . . . . .  520 17 6 

Benefits paid (799) (565) (203) (196) 
Fair value of plan assets 

atDecember31 . . . . .  $17,534 $19,968 $ - $ - 

atJanuary1 . . . . . . . .  $19,968 $21,566 $ - $ - 
I assets . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (2,284) (1,057) - 

. . . . . . . . .  
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Funded Status Reconciliation and Key Assumptions The Bank’s Supplemental Employee Retirement Plan (the 
“SERP”) was the only pension plan with an accumulated 

Reconciliation of funded 
status 
Funded Status . . . . . . . . .  
Unrecognized net 

actuarial (gain) loss . . .  
Unrecognized prior 

service cost. . . . . . . . . .  
Unrecognized transition 

obligation (asset) . . . . .  
Prepaid accrued (benefit) 

cost . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Postretirement 
Pension Benefits Benefits 

2002 2001 2002 2001 ---- 

$(4,356) $ 307 $(2,561) $(2,365) 

4,399 (433) 1,386 1,346 

790 860 - - 

- 259 285 - 

$ 833 $734 $ (916) $ (734) 

Postretirement 
Pension Benefits Benefits 

2002 2001 2002 2001 

benefit obligation in excess of pian assets. The SERP’s 
accumulated benefit obligation was $1,766,514 as of 
December 31,2002 and $1,381,770 as of December 31, 
2001. There are no plan assets in the SERP due to the 
nature of the SERP. The Corporation’s plan for 
postretirement benefits other than pensions also has no 
plan assets. 

The assumptions used in the measurement of the 
Corporation’s benefit obligation are shown on the 
following table: 

Postretirement 
Pension Benefits Benefits 

2001 2000 2001 2000 

Weighted-average assumptions 
as of end of year Amounts recognized in Discount rate . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  6.75% 7.25% 6.75% 7.25% financial statements 

consists of: Expected return on plan 
Prepaid benefit cost/ assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  9.25% 9.25% NIA NIA 

Intangible asset prior 

- - -  - 

(Accrued benefit Rate of compensation 
liability) . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 197 $359 $ (916) $ (734) increase . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  5.00% 5.00% NIA NIA 

servicecost . . . . . . . . . .  351 365 - - The assumed health care cost trend rate for 2002 is 8%, 
Accumulated other 

comprehensive 
ultimately trending down to 6% over the next four years. 

income . . . . . . . . . . . . .  285 10 

recognized . . . . . . . . . .  $ 833 $734 $ (916) $ (734) 
Net amount 

The following table provides the components of net periodic cost (income) for the plans for years ended December 31, 
2002,2001 and 2000: 

Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits 

Service cost. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Interest cost . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Expected return on plan assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Amortization of prior service cost . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Amortization of net actuarial (gain) loss . . . . . . . . . .  
Net periodic (benefit) cost ..................... 

Amortization of transition obligation (asset) . . . . . . .  

~~ ~ 

2002 2001 2000 2002 2001 2000 

1,355 1,279 1,123 171 166 107 
$ 808 $ 774 $ 733 !§ 28 $ 23 $ 7  

(1,807) (1,958) (1,962) - - - 
- - 181 167 158 

- 26 26 26 
12 (336) (895) 144 109 36 
- - 

~ ____ ~~~ 

$ 549 $ (74) $ (843) $369 $324 $1 76 

D. Sensitivity Analysis, Postretirement Benefits 

Health care cost trend rate if changed by 1 % 
1 -Percentage 1 -Percentage 

Point Increase Point Decrease 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Effect on total of service and interest cost components $ 25,586 $ (14,706) 
Effect on accumulated postretirement benefit obligation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  268,005 222,597 

12. Stock Option Plan: 

option and stock appreciation rights plan (the “Stock 

applies AF’B Opinion 25 and related interpretations in 
accounting for the Stock Option Plan. Accordingly, no 

compensation cost has been recognized for the Stock 

Stock Option Plan been determined based on the fair 

2000, consistent with the optional provisions of Statement 
of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123, “Accounting 

At December 31, 1988, the Corporation maintains a stock 

Option Plan“), which is described below. The Corporation 

Option ’Ian. Had for the 

at the grant date for awards in 2002, 2o01 and 
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for S t c k  Rased C:omperisation”, the ( :orporation7s net 
inronir arid caniirigs per sharr would have been rediirrtl 
to the pro forma araountb i ndic*ated below: 

2002 2001 2000 

Net income-as reported . . . $10,207 $9,126 $8,261 
Net Income pro forma . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $10,049 $8,986 $8,037 
Baslc earnings per share-as 

reported . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 2.34 $ 2.11 $ 1.92 
Basic earnings per share-proforma . . .  $ 2.31 $ 2.08 $ 1.87 

The fair vahie of carh option granted is estimated on die 
date of the grant using the Black-Srholes option priring 
rnotiel with the following weighted-average assumptions 
used for grants in 2002, 2001 arid 2000: dividend yield of 
2.26 percent, expected volatility of 18.3 percent, cxperted 
life of six years arid risk-free interest rates of 5.1, 5.0 and 
6.S percent, respectively. 

The Plan had, prior to 1004, up to 216,000 authorized 
and unissued or Treasury shares of the Corporatioil’s 
common stock reserved for issuanre under the Plan. 
During 1994, the shareholders’ approved an additinrial 
217,120 shares for issuance under the Plan. The option to 
piircliase shares of the Corporation’s common stock was 
issued to key officers. During 1005, the shareholder’s 

Balance at December 31 , 1999 . . . . . . . . .  
Options granted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Options exercised . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Balance at December 31 , 2000 . . . . . . . . .  
Options cancelled . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Options authorized . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Options granted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Options exercised . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Options cancelled . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Balance at December 31,2001 . . . . . . . . .  
Options granted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Options exercised . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Options cancelled . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Balance at December 31,2002 . . . . . . . .  

Shares 
Undrr 

apprnve(I tlie issuaiice of 80,000 shares, 20,000 to he 
granted to oiitside dirertors, for 4 years alter padi Anaual 
Meeting. The option prire was set at the last sale price for 
the stock 011 the 3rd business day I’ollowiiig the 
Corporation’s hnriual Meetiiig. Options totaliog 76,000 
shares of Corporation stork were issrierl wider the outside 
dirertors’ pla~i. During 1998 and 2001 , the shareholders 
approved tlie issiiaiice of up to 217,606 arid 102,603 
respective sliitres availablc for issiiarlce to hot11 employees 
and (&rectors. The price will he dctennined b y  the 
Corporation’s Compensation Cornmittee of tlie Board of 
Dircctors at tlie time tlie option is granted. 

Options granted may either be “iiicmtive stock opti~ris” 
within the meaning of tlic Interrial Keveniie Service rode, 
or non-qualified options. The stock options are exercisable 
over a period detenniried by the Board of Directors; 
however, the option period will riot cornmerice earlier than 
one year or be longer than ten years from the date of the 
grant. The Plan provides that the option price at the date 
oI grant will riot be less than the fair market value of the 
(hrporation‘s common stock. The following is B summary 
of transactions urider the Plan: 

Weighted 
hveragc 
Excrt:ise ~. . 

Opti o11 Price per Share Price 

429,280 83,326 $ 4.50-$24.50 $1 4.08 
83,300 (83,300) $21 .OO-$21.50 $21.05 
(38,000) - $ 4.50-$16.91 $ 6.04 

472,480 2,126 $ 4.50-$26.44 $1 6.22 

77,800 (77,800) $24.90-$30.30 $28.36 

(1 2,250) 12,250 $24.90-$30.30 $29.86 
414,150 129,239 
67,250 (67,250) $32.50-$36.63 $35.52 

(21 1,433) - $ 7.38-$26.44 $14.93 
(1 4,350) 14,350 $24.50-$30.30 $29.88 
255,617 76,339 

(291 00) 2,100 $21 .OO-$21.50 

- - - 192,663 

(1 23,880) - $ 7.35-$26.44 $1 1.44 

Infomiation pertaining to options outstanding at December 31, 2002 is as follows: 

Price range of shareR under option at 
December 31,2002: 

Balance at December 31,2002 . 

Shares 
Ijrder 
Oution Price Der Share 

. . . . . . . .  

1 1,500 $ 8.00-$12.50 
81,100 $ 16.91 -24.90 
99,767 $26.44-$30.30 
63,250 $32.50-$36.63 

. . 255,617 $ 8.00-$36.63 

Weighted 
Averaee 

Rrrriainlng 
Contractual 

Life 

2.84 
6.24 
7.76 
9.33 
7.44 

Weighted Weighted 
Aver ape Average 
Exercise Nurnker Exercixe 

Price Exercisable Price 

$1 0.78 1 1,500 $10.78 
$22.15 81,100 $22.15 
$27.53 59,122 $27.05 
$35.45 - 
$27.03 I - 



The weighted-average fair value of options granted during 
2002, 2001 and 2000 were $7.76, $5.83 and $4.61, 
respectively. 

The number of exercisable shares at December 31, 2002, 
2001 and 2000 were 151,722,348,600 and 389,180, 
respectively, with respective weighted average exercise 
prices of $23.20, $17.80 and $10.18. 

Stock appreciation rights may be granted in tandem with 
non-qualified stock options. No stock appreciation rights 
have been granted under the Plan. The options had a $.03 
per share, $.03 per share and $.05 per share dilutive effect 
on earnings per share for the years ended December 31, 
2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. 

13. Related Partv Transactions: 
In the ordinary course of business, the Bank granted loans 
to principal officers, directors and their affiliates. Loan 
activity during 2002 and 2001 was as follows: 

Following is a summary of these transactions: 
(in thousands) 2002 2001 

Balance, beginning of year . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $4,140 $4,437 
Additions.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  1,320 892 
Amounts collected . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (434) (1,189) 

Balance, end of year ......................... $5,026 $4,140 

Related party deposits amounted to $1,124,000 and 
$1,120,000 at December 31, 2002 and 2001 , respectively. 

14. Financial Instruments with Off-Balance Sheet 
Risk and Concentration of Credit Risk: 

The Corporation is a party to financial instruments with 
off-balance sheet risk in the normal course of business to 
meet the financing needs of its customers. These financial 
instruments include commitments to extend credit and 
standby letters of credit. Those instruments involve, to 
varying degrees, elements of credit risk in excess of the 
amount recognized in the consolidated statements of 
financial condition. The contractual amounts of those 
instruments reflect the extent of involvement the 
Corporation has in particular classes of financial 
instruments. 

The Corporation’s exposure to credit loss in the event of 
nonperformance by the counterparty to the financial 
instrument of commitments to extend credit and standby 
letters of credit is represented by the contractual amount 
of those instruments. The Corporation uses the same 
credit policies in making commitments and conditional 
obligations as it does for on-balance sheet financial 
instruments. 

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a 
customer as long as there is no violation of any condition 
established in the agreement. Commitments generally 

have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses 
and may require payment of a fee. Some of the 
commitments are expected to expire without being drawn 
upon, and the total commitment amounts do not 
necessarily represent future cash requirements. Total 
commitments to extend credit at December 31,2002 are 
$174,256,000. The Corporation evaluates each customer’s 
creditworthiness on a case-by-case basis. The amount of 
collateral obtained, if deemed necessary by the 
Corporation upon extension of credit, is based on 
management’s credit evaluation of the counterparty. 
Collateral varies but may include accounts receivable, 
marketable securities, inventory, property, plant and 
equipment, residential real estate, and income-producing 
commercial properties. 

Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments 
issued by the Bank to a customer for a third party. Such 
standby letters of credits are issued to support private 
borrowing arrangements. The credit risk involved in 
issuing standby letters of credit is similar to that involved 
in extending loan facilities to customers. The collateral 
varies, but may include accounts receivable, marketable 
securities, inventory, property, plant and equipment, and 
residential real estate for those commitments for which 
collateral is deemed necessary. The Corporation’s 
obligation under standby letters of credit as of December 
31, 2002 amounted to $9,186,000. There were no 
outstanding bankers acceptances as of December 31, 
2002. 

As of December 31, 2002, the Corporation had no loans 
sold with recourse outstanding. 

The Corporation grants construction, commercial, 
residential mortgage, and consumer loans to customers 
primarily in Southeastern Pennsylvania. Although the 
Corporation has a diversified loan portfolio, its debtors’ 
ability to honor their contracts is substantially dependent 
upon the general economic conditions of the region. 

15. Risks and Uncertainties: 
The earnings of the Corporation depend on the earnings of 
the Bank. The Bank’s earnings are dependent upon both 
the level of net interest income and non-interest revenue 
streams, primarily fees for trust services, that are earned 
annually. Accordingly, the earnings of the Corporation are 
subject to risks and uncertainties surrounding both its 
exposure to changes in the interest rate environment and 
movements in financial markets. 

Most of the Bank’s lending activity is with customers 
located in southeastern Pennsylvania. Lending is spread 
between commercial, consumer and real estate related 
loans, including construction lending. Whde these loan 
concentrations represent a potential concentration of 



rreclii risk, the Ilank’s credit loss expericnce cwrnparcs 
Iavorahly to the Rank’s peer group rredit loss cxperieiice. 

The fiiiancial staternenis ol  the Corporation are prepared 
i t i  roriforrnit y with geiierully a 
principles hat  reqiiire mmagemeiit to make estimates arid 
assiimptions that affect tlir rrpot~ed arnounts of asset5 ;uid 
lialdities, as well as disclosures of vontirigcnt assets arid 
liabilitie5 at the date of thr financial stutcrnents aiid tlw 
reported arnoiiiits of i*cvcniies arid expenses rliiring the 
reported period. hrtual results roiild diflcr from those 
estimates. 

Signifiwnt estimates are made hy rriaiiageizicnt in 
rleterininirig the allowaiice for possihle loari lossrs and the 

carrying viiliie oI other real estate owried. Consideration is 
giveii to a variety of factors in establishing these estimates, 
including current econornic conditions, the results of thc 
internal loari review process, delinqiiericy statistics, 
ljorrowers perceived finaiicial and inariagerial strengths 
and the adequacy of siipportirig collateral, iI collateral 
dependerit, or the present value of future cash flows. Since 
tlic allowarice for possihle loan losses aid  die carryiiig 
valiie of otlicr real estate owned are dependent, to a great 
extent, oii general and other econornic conditions beyorid 
the Rank7s control, it is at least reasonably possible that 
the estimates of the allowance for possible loari losses and 
the carrying valiie of other real estate owned could differ 
materially Irotn ciirrently reported values i ti tlie near term. 

16. Goodwill: 
Joseph W .  Roskos & Co. was arcpiired as of Jaiiiiary 1, 1999. The transaction was accornplisl-led 011 April 1, 1000 under 
the purchasr method of accountiiig. Goodwill arising from this traiisaction was recorded on the balari 
heiiig araortircd on a straight line hasis over a 20 year period. Reginniiig in 2002, iinder Siatement of Finanrial 
Acroiiritirig Slandartl No. 14‘2 - Goodwill and Other Tntangiblc Assets ( ‘ W A S  No 14%”) , all cornporrents of Goodwill are 
iio longer to he arnortixed, biit rather trsted aririuully Ior any potential impairment. Driring the fourth qiiarter of 2002, the 
balnncc of goodwill was tested for impairment. Based 011 a disrounted cash flow analysis, reflecting lower projected 
revenitc s t reams for .lo5cpli W. Roskos & Ch. in future ~~criods,  it was determined tliat gnoilwill had impairment in the 
amount of $400,000.  herefo fore, the l ja lanr~ of goodwill was written down by $400,000 diiriiig tlie lourth quarter oI 2002 
to $2,405.000. 

Nuinbrr 
of Shares 

Method of nxtr of Purc:hHse Common Issiirti or 
Accmiiitirit: hc~uisition Price Cash Stock Isvuable Chidwill 

Arrio i int  Total 

Joseph W. Roskos & Co I . , . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . , . . . Purchase 01/01/99 $4,195,000 $2,195,000 2,000,000 74,697 $3,300,000 

Joseph W. Koskos SC Ch. is i t  firm which offers Iamily 
husiness office services, iiichtding accoiinting, consulting, 
tax se,rvices arid fidiiciary support to high-net-worth 
individuals itrid families. 

17. Minimum Regulatory Capital Kcquirements: 
Both the (hrporatioii and thc Rank are subject to various 
regulatory capital requirements, administered hy the 
fetleral banking agencies. Failure to meet miniinnin 
capital requirements c ~ i i  iriitiatc certain rriaridatory and 
possihly additionid discretioiiary actions hy regulators 
that, if takeii, could have a direct material effect on the 
Chrporatioris and the Rank’s financial statements. Lirider 
capital atleyuacy guidelines arid tlic regulatory framework 
lo r  prompt corrective actioii, the Corporation arid [he 
Bank miist meet specific capital guidelines tliat involve 
quantitative measures of their assets, liahilities aiid certain 
off-balance-shect items as calculaled under regulatory 
accounting practices. The capital amounts and 
classifications are also subject to qiialitative j udgeinerits 
hy the regulators ahout components, risk weiglitings a d  
other factors. Prompt corrective action provisions are iiot 
applicable to bank lioldirig conipaiiies. 

As set for-th in the followirig table, quantitative measiires 
have heeri e5tablished to erisurc capital adequacy ratios 
rcquired of Loth the Corporation and Baiik, spccifirally to 
define the rriiriirniini respective rapital ratios as follows: 
total rapital to total asset5 (the leverage ratio) of 4%; Tier 
I rapital to risk weigliteci assets of 4”h arid ‘l’ier I1 capital 
to risk weiglitcd assets of 8% Both the Corporation7s and 
the B i d ’ s  Tier I1 rapital ratios are calculated by adding 
bark a portion oT the loari loss reserve to the Tier I capital. 
Management believes, as of December 31,2002 and 2001 
that the Corporatioil itrid the Bark h v e  mrt all capital 
adequacy reqiiirernents to wliirh they arc siihjert. Federal 
banking regiilators have ilefined specific capital 
categories, hased on an institution’s capital ratios. The 
categories raiige for a best of “well capitalized” to a worst 
of “critically iiiider capitalized”. To be considered “well 
capitalixrd”, an institution miist have a total (Tier 11) 
r*apilal ratio of 100/0 or better. Both tlic Corporation arid 
the Bark have been classified as “well capitalized” for 
hoth periods eriding TI ruler 31, 2002 and 2001. 



The Corporation’s and the Bank‘s actual capital amounts and ratios as of December 31,2002 and 2001 are presented in 
the following table: 

December 31 , 2002 
Total (Tier I I )  Capital to Risk Weighted Assets: 

Consolidated . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
TheBank . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Consolidated . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
TheBank . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

consolidated . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
TheBank . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Tier I Capital to Risk Weighted Assets: 

Total Capital to Total Assets (Leverage Ratio): 

December 31 , 2001 
Total (Tier I I )  Capital to Risk Weighted Assets: 

Consolidated . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
TheBank . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Consolidated . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
TheBank . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Consolidated . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
The Bank . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

18. Selected Ouarterlv Financial Data (unaudited): 

Tier I Capital to Risk Weighted Assets: 

Total Capital to Total Assets (Leverage Ratio): 

(In thousands, except per share data) 

Interest income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Interestexpense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Net interest income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Provision for loan losses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Income before income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Earningspercommonshare . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Diluted earnings per common share . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

(In thousands, except per share data) 

Interest income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Interestexpense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Net interest income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Provision for loan losses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Income before income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Earnings per common share ................................ 
Diluted earnings per common share . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Minimum Minimum Capital to be Well 
Requirement Capitalized Actual 

Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount 

$66,283 
55,250 

60,162 
49,l 29 

62,607 
49,171 

$59,164 
47,969 

54,228 
43,033 

57,307 
43,310 

12.86% 
10.85% $40,753 

11.67% 
9.64% 20,376 

10.85% 
8.63% 22,778 

4.03% 
1.53% $33,289 

2.86% 
0.34% 16,644 

2.02% 
9.25% 18,728 

8.0% NIA 
8.0% $50,925 

4.0% NIA 
4.0% 30,555 

4.0% NIA 
4.0% 28,465 

8.0% 
8.0% $4 

4.0% 
4.0% 2 

4.0% 

NIA 
,611 

NIA 
,974 

NIA 
4.0% 21,408 

Quarters ending 2002 
3/31 6/30 9/30 12/31 

$7,179 $7,247 $7,461 $7,525 
1,154 1,013 1,089 1,228 
6,025 6,234 6,372 6,297 

250 250 250 250 
3,669 3,726 4,077 4,260 
2,409 2,456 2,672 2,670 

$ 0.56 $ 0.56 $ 0.61 $ 0.61 
$ 0.54 $ 0.55 $ 0.60 $ 0.60 

Quarters ending 2001 
313 1 6/30 9/30 12/31 

$7,635 
1,614 
6,021 

500 
3,238 
2,188 

$ 0.51 
$ 0.49 

$7,649 
1,549 
6,100 

200 
3,383 
2,159 

$ 0.50 
$ 0.48 

$7,636 
1,689 
5,947 

200 
3,746 
2,470 

$ 0.57 
$ 0.55 

$7,391 
1,450 
5,941 

300 
3,529 
2,309 

$ 0.53 
$ 0.52 
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LO. Condensed Financial Statements: 

The roridtwbeil linaririal staterncrits nf the Corporation 
(parent rorripiiiiy only) as of Deceinbcr 3 1 , 2002 arid 
2001 , and for citch nf‘ tlie t h e e  ycitrs in the period erirfrd 
I>eceiiiber 3 1, 2002, are a b  follows: 

Condcmsed Balanw Sheels 
(in Ihnuxnndu) 

Assets: 
Cash . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Investments in subsidiaries, at equity in net 

assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Premises and equipment, net . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Goodwill . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Other assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Total assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Mortgages payable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Other liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Total liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Liabilities and shareholders’ equity: 

2002 “001 

$ 3,006 $ 234 

54,132 50,601 
3,663 3,762 
2,405 2,805 

380 760 
3 63,586 $ 58,162 

559 
296 
855 
- 

Common stock, par value $1, authorized 
25,000,000 shares as of December 31,2002 
and 2001, respectively, issued 5,541,108 
shares and 5,329,675 shares as of 
December 31,2002 and 2001, respectively 
and outstanding 4,356,474 shares and 
4,322,121 shares as of December 31,2002 
and 2001, respectively . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  5,541 5,330 

Paid-in capital in excess of par value . . . . . . . . .  11,243 6,676 
Unrealized investment appreciation 

(depreciation), net of deferred income 
taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  41 274 

Retained earnings . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  63,389 56,499 
Less common stock in treasury, at cost- 
1,184,634 shares and 1,007,554 shares as of 
December 31,2002 and 2001 . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (17,607) (1 1,472) 

Total shareholders’ equity . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  62,607 57,307 

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity . . .  $ 63,586 $ 58,162 

Cunderised Statemenis of Income 
(in tlmuuundu) 

Dividends from The Bryn Mawr Trust 
Company . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Interest and other income . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Total operating income . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Income before equity in undistributed 

income of subsidiaries . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Equity in undistributed income of 

subsidiaries . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Income before income taxes . . . . . . . . . .  
Federal income tax benefit . . . . . . . . . . .  
Net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

$ 4,816 $3,116 $9,646 
236 236 236 

5,052 3,352 9,882 
991 707 1,008 

4,061 2,645 8,874 

6,025 6,377 (765) 
10,080 9,022 8,109 

121 104 152 

$10,207 $9,126 $8,261 

Condensed Statements of Cash Flows 
(in thouatinch) 2uu2 mi 2ooo 

Operating activities: 
Net income .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $10,207 $ 9,126 $8,261 
Adjustments to reconcile net income 

to net cash provided by operating 
activities: 

Equity in undistributed income 
(losses) of subsidiaries . . . . . . . . .  (6,025) (6,377) 765 

Depreciation expense . . . . . . . . . . . .  99 98 99 
. . . . . . . . . . .  165 324 Amortization of goodwill - 

Writedown of impaired goodwill . . . .  400 
Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  1,915 408 339 

Net cash provided by operating 
activities ..................... 6,596 3,420 9,788 

Investment in Subsidiaries . . . . . . . .  2,494 (376) (4,885) 

activities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  2,494 (376) (4,885) 

Dividends paid . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (3,317) (3,115) (2,922) 
Repayment of mortgage debt . . . . . .  (46) (42) (37) 
Repurchase of treasury stock . . . . . .  (6,183) (2,259) (1,677) 

Investing Activities: 

Net cash provided by investing 

Financing activities: 

Proceeds from issuance of stock . , . 3,228 1,562 76 

Net cash used by financing 

Change in cash and cash 

Cash and cash equivalents at 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of 

activities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (6,318) (3,854) (4,560) 

equivalents . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  2,772 (810) 343 

beginning of year . . . . . . . . .  234 1,044 701 

year . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 3,006 $ 234 $ 1,044 

‘ h s e  statelrielits should be read in corijunction with tlie 
otlier notes related to tlic consolidated financial 
statements, 

As a hailk a r i d  (rust compariy subj to the Peririsylvariia 
Rankiiig Codc (the “Barikiiig Code”) of 1965 as amended, 
the Bank is subject to le#al limilations as to the amount of 
dividerids tliat can he paid to its shareholder, the 
Corporation. ‘lhe Banking Code restricts the payment of 
divitlends by tlic Bank to the amount of its retained 
earnings. As of December 31 , 2002, die Bank’s retained 
earnings arnounterl to $49,356,000. Therefore, as of 
Decernler 3 1, 2002, dividerids available for paynierit to 
the Corporation are limited to $49,356,000. Since the 
prirnitry source of dividend Iunding for the Corporatinn’s 
dividend payments to its shareholders is tlir Hank’s 
dividends, the CoIporaLion i s  effectively limited as to the 
amount of dividends tlia~ Ct may pay to an arnomt e p 1 1  
to tlie limits p1at:eti oii the Bank, HS discussed above. 
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20. Segment Information: 

The Corporation’s principal operating segments are structured around the financial services provided its customers. The 
banking segment gathers deposits and makes funds available for loans to its customers. The Banks Wealth Management 
segment provides both corporate and individual investment management and trust products and services. The Bank’s 
mortgage banking segment originates and sells residential mortgage loans to the secondary mortgage market. 

Segment information for the years ended December 31,2002,2001, and 2000 is as follows: 
2002 2001* 2000 

Vraltb 
Managr- Mortgage All 

Bauking rnmt Banking Other Consolidated 

Wealth 
Manage- Mortgage All 

(in thnunandrj Banking ment Banking Other Consolidated 

Wealtlr 
Manage- Mortgage All 

Banking rnent Banking 0th~ Consolidated 

Net interest 
income . . . . . . . . . $ 24,697 $ -  

- 

- 

8,620 

- 

- 

- 

- 
3 

8,623 

3,464 
291 
706 
580 

891 

5,932 

2,691 

181 

$ 200 $ 31 

- - 

$ 24,928 

1,000 

23,928 

8,620 

1,822 

1,747 

9,653 

- 
4,768 

26,610 

14,149 
2,978 
3,529 
4,251 

9,899 

34,806 

15,732 

- 
$ 15,732 

6 23,480 $ - 

1.200 - 

$ 243 $ 286 

- - 

$ 24,009 

1,200 

22,809 

8,737 

1,540 

1,298 

5,221 

- 

5,034 

21,830 

14,048 
2,036 
2.819 
4,363 

7,477 

30,743 

13,896 

- 

$ 13,896 

$ 24,684 $ - 

250 - 

$ 216 $ 17 $ 24,917 

250 

24,667 

8,973 

1,144 

1,069 

1,240 

14 

5,714 

18,154 

13,859 
1,043 
1,849 
4,517 

8,859 

30,127 

12,694 

- 

$ 12,694 

Less loan loss 
provision . . . . . . . . 

Net interest income 
after loan loss 
provision . . . . . . . . 

Other income: 
Fees for 

investment 
management 
and trust 
services . , . . . . 

Selvice charges 
on deposit 
accounts , , . . . . 

Other fees and 
service 
charges . . . . . . . 

of loans , , . . . . . 

other real estate 
owned . . . . . . . . 

income , . . . . . . 
Total other 

income . , , . . . . . , 
Other expenses: 

Salaries-regular . . 
Salaries-other . . . , 
Fringe benefits . . . 
Occupancy , , . . . . 
Other operating 

expenses , . . . .  
Total other 

expenses , . . . . . .  
Segment profit 

(loss) . . . . . . , , . . . 
lntersegment 

(revenues) 
expenses . . . . . . .  

Net gain on sale 

Gain on sale of 

Other operating 

1,000 

23,697 

- 

1,822 

235 

6 

- 

1,374 

3,437 

7,822 
1,918 
2,437 
3,072 

4,726 

19,975 

7,159 

(15) 

- 

216 

- 

- 

774 

1,232 

- 

- 

2,006 

538 
30 
70 
142 

379 

1,159 

1,063 

- 

- 

17 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

4,789 

4,789 

2,320 
52 
313 
502 

2,095 

5,282 

(476) 

(31 9) 

200 31 22,280 - 243 286 24,434 - 

- 8,737 - 8.973 

1.540 - 1,144 - 

1,512 - 
9.647 - 

294 - 

3 -  

1,004 - 

5,218 - 

295 - 

8 -  

14 - 

925 - 

2,386 8,973 

7,826 3,175 
750 211 
850 616 

3,401 472 

5,505 880 

18,332 5,354 

8,488 3,619 

- - 

- 3,391 

11,159 3,391 

1,088 1,775 
692 77 
88 298 

172 427 

2,842 1,440 

4,882 4,017 

6,477 (595) 

- - 

1,547 11 

3,384 8,748 

8,201 3,010 
1,505 202 
1,853 585 
3,109 632 

4,061 1,088 

18,729 5,517 

6,935 3,231 

- - 

- 3,476 

6,222 3,476 

883 1,954 
252 77 
66 315 
178 444 

1,326 1,002 

2,705 3,792 

3,760 (30) 

374 181 

; 7,309 $3,412 

- (555) 

$ 3,760 $ (585) 

138 181 

6 8,628 $3,800 
Segment profit after 

eliminations , , . . . 5 7.144 52.872 $ 1,063 $ (795) 
%of segment 

profit (loss) . . . . 46% 18% 41% (5%) 100% 
Total assets at 

Capital 

Depreciation and 

December 31 . . . . $481,866 $1,117 $86,288 $7,971 $577,242 

expenditures , . . .  $ 718 $ 58 $ 134 5 71 $ 981 

amortization , . . . .  $ 1,046 $ 176 $ 31 $ 172 $ 1,425 

53% 24% 27% (4%) 100% 

8400,348 $1,267 $66,504 $8,704 $476,823 

569 5 991 $ 26 $ 48 $ 1,634 

1.138 $ 211 $ 31 $ 169 $ 1,549 

68% 30% 8% (6%) 100% 

6392,028 $ 457 $38,123 $13,817 $444,425 

6 2,108 $ 47 $ 16 $ 359 $ 2,530 

6 1,314 5 153 $ 34 $ 520 5 2,021 

Bryn Mawr Bank Corporation, Insurance Counsellors of Bryn Mawr, Inc., Bryn Mawr Settlement Services, Inc., Bryn M a w  
Brokerage Company Inc., Bryn Mawr Finance, Inc. and Joseph W. Roskos & Co have all been aggregated in All Others. 

*-Reclassified for comparative purposes. 



Report of Independent Accountants 

To the Board of Directow and Shareholders of Rryn Mawr Rank Corporation: 

In our opinion, the accornpan ying consolidated bala11ce sheets a d  the related consolidated statements of income, 
compre1-lensivc income, changes in shnrchnlders’ equity and of citsh flows present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of Rryri Mawr Rank Corporation m d  its subsidiaries ( at Decerriber 31, 2002 arid 2001 , 
arici  the remlts o l  their operations and their cash flows for each of tlic three years in the period ended Decemher 31, 2002 
in conlormity with acmimtirig principles generally accepted in the United States of America. ‘Fliese firiaricial statements are 
tlir responsihility of the Corporation’s rnanagernent; our responsibility is to express an opiriiorl 011 these financial 
statements based on our audits. We coiidricteti our audits of tliese staterrwrits in accordaricc with auditing standards 
generally at:ceptcd in the Ihited States ol America, which require h a t  we plan and perform the aiidit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether tlie financial statements are free of material inisstaterrlent, A n  audit includes examining, ori a test 
hasis, evidence siipportiiig the amounts and disclosurcs in tlie financial statements, assessirlg the accounting principles 
used aid  significant estimates niade hy  management, and evaluating the overall finaricial statement presentation. We 
helisve that our aiidits provide a reasonable hasis for our opinion. 

As discussed in note 2 to the CoiisolidaLed Financial Statements tlic Corporation adopted the Statement of the Firiancial 
Arroiiiiting Standard No. 14% ““Coodwill and Other Intangible Assets” effective January 1, 2002. 

PI1 ila delphia, Penmylvariia 
January 16, 2003 
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